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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the shareholders of AB Utenos TrikotaZzas

Report on the Audit of the Company's and Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of AB Utenos Trikotazas, a public limited liability
company registered in the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter the Company), and the consolidated financial
statements of AB Utenos TrikotaZas and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the Group), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of 31 December 2018, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Company's and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ali material
respects, the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018 and their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reparting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs) and Regulation (EU) No
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific requirements regarding
statutory audit of public-interest entities (regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the
Council). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the requirements of the Law on Audit of the financial statements of the
Republic of Lithuania that are relevant to the audit in the Republic of Lithuania, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Law on Audit of the financial statements of the Republic of Lithuania
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Recaverability of investment, loans granted and trade receivables from subsidiary

Investment and loans granted to subsidiary Mrija FAT
MTF and receivables from the subsidiary before
impairment allowance amount to EUR 6.870 thousand
and after impairment allowance to EUR 1.788
thousand in the statements of financial position of the
Company as of 31 December 2018. The Company's
management performed an impairment fesi of these
assets based on the value in use estimation as
disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. This
annual impairment test was significant to our audit as
it involves management judgment in making the
assumptions related to cash flows forecasts and
discount rate used in the value in use estimations as
disclosed in Note 4. Furthermore, the investments,
loans granted and related trade receivables after
impairment allowance represent more than 9% of the
total assets of the Company as of 31 December 2018.

Determination of the carrying value of the buildings

As of 31 Decembar 2018 the Company and the Group
had buildings of EUR 3.778 thousand and EUR 6.816
thousand respectively (as of 31 December 2017 - EUR
4221 thousand and EUR 3.072 thousand
respectively). The Company and the Group has a policy
of recording buildings at revalued amounts.
Independent valuations are undertaken if there is an
indicator that the fair value has changed significantly.
Prior to this financial year the last independent
valuation was carried out in 2013.

The Management has identified indications that the fair
value of buildings may have been changed significantly
and decided to perform an independent valuation of
buildings as of 31 December 2018.

Valuation of buildings is a key audit matter due to its
financial magnitude and judgement involved in the
assessment of the value of these assets. The judgment
relates to the valuation methods used and the
assumptions included in each of those methods.

We gained an understanding of how management
evaluate recoverability of investments, loans granted
and trade receivables. Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Company. We involved a
valuation specialist to assist us with the assessment of
the discount rate used by the management in the
impairment test. We considered other significant
assumptions used by the management in the
estimation of cash flows forecasts by comparing
revenues and costs to historical performance levels
and growth rates. We assessed whether future cash
flows, amongst others, were based on the strategic
and business plans and other relevant developments in
the business of the cash generating unit (hereinafter -
CGU). We tested the sensitivity in the available
headroom of the CGU considering if a possible change
in assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount and also assessed the
historical accuracy of management's estimates.
Finally, we evaluated the adequacy of the Company's
disclosures included in Note 4 about the assumptions
used in the impairment test and the outcome of the
test.

As part of our audit procedures, we obtained
independent  valuation reports, assessed the
competence, objectivity and independence of the
independent valuators used. We involved EY valuation
specialists who assisted us in reviewing the valuation
reports and assessing whether the valuation approach
was in accordance with professional valuation
standards and suitable for determining the fair value
of buildings. We discussed with the management and
understood the key assumptions used in the valuation,
as well as additionally compared these assumptions
used by the Management with the publicly available
information on real estate market situation and
developments. We compared the buildings in the
property, plant and equipment registers to those
valued to ensure that all buildings had been revalued
and accounted for correctly in accordance with the
requirements set in International accounting standard
16 ,Property, plant and equipment. In addition we have
assessed the adequacy of the Group's and the
Company's disclosures included in Note 4 and 7.
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Inventory net realizable value and allowance for obsolescence

Inventories of the Company and the Group amount fo
EUR 6.249 thousand and EUR 6.721 thousand
raspectively before impairment allowance and to EUR
5.678 thousand and EUR 5.827 thousand,
respectively, after impairment allewance in the
statements of financial position as of 31 December
2018. This is material to our audit since it is a material
amount for the Company and the Group comprising
28~26 % of the Company's and the Group's total
assats, and requires management judgment in
assassing if this is lower than the net realizable value
at year-end. There is also management judgment
required in determining inventory obsolescence

We gained an understanding of how management
evaluates inventory net realizable value and provision
for obsolescence. We have reviewed calculations of
inventory net realizable value, which was performed by
the management of the Group and the Company based
on review of subsequent sales after the year-end. We
have also analyzed obsolescence data and rates
applied in calculations of allowance and compared the
inventory obsolescence allowance to the Campany's
and the Group's historic figures. Finally, we have
evaluated the adequacy of the Group's and the
Company's disclosures included in Note 10.

allowance as these are based on obsolescence rates
and assessing if the impairment allowance level is
adequate as disclosed in Note 10 of the accompanying
financial staternents.

Qther information
Other information consists of the information included in the Company's and Group's Annual Report, including

Corporate Governance Report and Corporate Social Responsibility Report, other than the financial statements and
our auditar's report thereon. Management is responsible for the ather information presentation.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion theraon, except as indicated below.

In connection to our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |f, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

We also have to evaluate, if the financial information included in the Company’s and Group's Annual Report,
including Corporate Governance Report, corresponds to the financial statements for the same financial year and if
the Company's and Group’s Annual Report, including Corporate Governance Report, was prepared in accordance
with the relevant legal requirements. In our opinion, based on the work performed in the course of the audit of
financial staterents, in all material respects:

» The financial information included in the Company's and Group’s Annual Report, including Corporate
Governance Report, corresponds to the financial information included in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018; and

» The Company's and Group's Annual Repart, including Corporate Governance Report, was prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Law on Consolidated Financial Reporting by Groups of Undertakings
of the Republic of Lithuania and the Law on Financial Reporting by Undertakings of the Republic of Lithuania.

We also need to check that the Corporate Social Responsibility Report has been provided. If we identify that
Carporate Social Responsibility Report has not been provided, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statermnents, management is responsible for assessing the Company's and the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company and/or the Group
of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's and the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinian.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken en the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the sffectiveness of the
Company's and Group’s internal contral.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtainad, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's and/ar the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company and/or the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

Other requirements of the auditor's report in accordance with Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European
Parliament and of the Council.

Appointment and approval of the auditor

in accordance with the decision made by Shareholders we have been appointed to carry out the audit of Company's
financial statements and Group's consolidated financial statements the first time on 18 April 2011. Our
appeintment to carry out the audit of Company's financial statements and Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the decision made by Shareholders has been renewed annually and the period of
total uninterrupted engagement is 8 years.

Consistency with the audit report submitted to the audit committee
We confirm that our opinion in the section Opinion is cansistent with the additional Audit report which we have
submitted to the management of the Company and the Audit Committee.

Non audit services

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, services provided to the Company and the Group are
consistent with the requirements of the law and regulations and do not comprise non-audit services referred to in
the Article 5(1) of the Regulation (EU) No 537/2Q14 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

Throughout our audit engagement period, we have not provided to the Company and the Group any other services
excepl for the audit of the financial statements and translation services (note 20).

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Asta Streimikiené.

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company’s licence No. 001335

o

Asta Streimiki
Auditor's licence
No. 000382

28 March 2019



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investments into subsidiaries
Receivables from subsidiaries
Deferred income tax asset

Current assets
Inventories

Trade receivables
Contract assets

Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Notes

O o~ M

25
23

10
11
221,11

12
13

Group

31 December

Company

31 December

2018 2017 2018 2017
855 661 249 68
9 661 6979 6130 5346
90 108 90 106
- - 1 550 1 550
- - 1788 2137
104 83 - -
10 510 7 809 9 807 9 207
5827 B 853 5678 6726
2419 1715 2081 1445
2416 - 2328 -
339 502 277 370
703 675 120 205
11 704 9 745 10 484 8 746
22 214 17 554 20 21 17 953

Continued on the next page



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviciaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position (cont’'d)

Group Company
31 December 31 December
Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the sharehold-
ers of the Company
Share capital 14 2756 2756 2756 2756
Legal reserve 15 574 574 574 574
Revaluation reserve 15 4340 3107 2303 1709
Reserve for acquisition of own shares 15 90 90 - -
Foreign currency conversion reserve 15 936 142 = =
Change in cash flow risk hedge reserve 15 (4) (21) (4) (21)
Accumulated retained earnings 2 150 528 3731 2672

10 842 7176 9 360 7 690
Non-controlling interest 25 319 260 - -
Total equity 11 161 7 436 9 360 7 690
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 379 2836 379 2836
Borrowings from subsidiaries 16, 25 . . 1200 1061
Deferred income tax liabilities 23 822 390 374 270
Derivative financial instruments 15 2 10 2 10
Provisions for employee benefits 17 240 309 188 260

1441 3 545 2141 4437
Current liabilities
Current portion of non-current borrow-
ings 16 2871 860 2 871 860
Current financial liabilities 25, 16 1239 - 1240 200
Derivative financial instruments 15 13 19 13 19
Trade payables 25 2577 2 668 2498 2649
Payables to other related parties and
subsidiaries 36 239 57 221
Contract liability 94 - 115 -
Income tax payables 4 37 - 12
Accrued expenses and other current lia-
bilities 18 2778 2750 1996 1865
9612 6 573 8790 5826

Total liabilities 11 053 10 118 10 931 10 263
Total equity and liabilities 22 214 17 554 20 291 17 953

The notes on pages 16 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by General Manager and Financi

General Manager Algirdas Sabanas

Chief Accountant Daiva Mikuléne




UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavitiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of comprehensive income
Group

Year ended 31 December

Company
Year ended 31 December

Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenue from contracts with customers  2.21,5 30 457 - 28 971 -
Sales 2.21,5 - 25 843 - 22 566
Cost of sales 19 (24 801} (20 774) (21 897) (18 608)
Gross profit 5 856 5 069 4974 3 950
Seling expenses 20 (2037} {2010) (1918) {1 908)
General and administrative expenses 20 (2 739) {2 527) (1 933) (1 856)
Other operating income 21 138 120 52 44
Other operating expenses 21 (18} 7 (11) (4)
Operating profit 1200 6845 1166 226
Financial income 22 225 118 108 2192
Financial costs 22 (274) (389) (668) {169)
Profit before tax 1151 372 606 2249
Income tax 23 {10) (71) (35) (14)
Net profit 1141 301 571 2235
Net profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 1107 274 571 29235
Non-conirelling interest o5 34 27 - -

1141 301 571 2235
Other comprehensive income (loss) to
be reclassified to profit or loss in sub-
sequent periods
Forelgn currency conversion gain 709 24 - -
Result from cash flow change risk hedg-
ing 17 22 17 22
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
1o be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 8186 46 17 22

10

Continued on the next page



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavidiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of comprehensive income (cont’d)

Group
Year ended 31 December

Company

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017
Other comprehensive income (loss) not
to be reclassified to profit or loss in sub-
sequent periods
Actuarial gains (losses) from the pensicns
reserve 17 77 40 77 40
Revaluation of buildings 1764 g 750 =
Income tax effect of revaluation of buildings (440) . (112) -
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 1401 40 715 40
Other comprehensive income (loss) for
the year, net of tax 2217 86 732 62
Total comprehensive income (loss) for
the year, net of tax 3 358 387 1303 2297
Total comprehensive income (loss) at-
tributable to: 3299 359 1303 2297
Equity holders of the Company 59 28 - ;
Non-controlling interest 3 358 387 1303 2297
Basic/diluted earnings per share 24 0.12 0.03 -

The notes on pages 16 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Algirdas Sabinas //7

Chief Accountant Daiva Mikuléng

11




UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of changes in equity

Group

Balance as of 31 De-
cember 2016

Net profit for the year

Cther comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

Reserve for acquisition
of own shares
Non-controlling inter-
est acquisition
Reduction of non-con-
trolling interest of
share capital and divi-
dend payments
Revaluation reserve
transfer to retained
earnings

Balance as at 31 De-
cember 2017

Impact of application
of IFRS 15

Balance as at 1 Janu-
ary 2018 {restated)

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

Revaluation reserve
transfer to retained
earnings

Balance as at 31 De-
cember 2018

Equity attributable to the equity hoiders of the Company

Foreign Accumu- Non-
Reserve cur- lated re- con-
Reval- for ac- rency tained trol-
Legal uation quisition con-  QOther earn- ling
Share re- re- of own version re- ings/ inte- Total
Notes capital serve serve shares reserve serves (losses) Total rest equity
2756 574 3173 269 119 (43) (41) 6 807 466 7273
- - - - - - 274 274 27 301
- - - - 23 22 40 85 1 86
- - - - 23 22 314 359 28 387
- - - (179) - - 179 - - -
1 - - - - - - 10 10 (51) {41)
- - - - - - - - {183) (183)
- - (66) - - - 86 - - -
2756 574 3107 90 142 {21) 528 7176 260 7 436
2.21 - - - - - - 367 367 - 367
2756 574 3107 90 142 (21} B95 7 543 260 7803
- - - - - - 1107 1107 34 1141
7. 18,
17 - - 1304 - 794 17 77 2192 25 2247
- - 1304 - 794 17 1184 3299 59 3358
- - {71} - - - 71 - - -
2756 574 4340 90 936 4) 2150 10842 319 111861

12



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavigiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of changes in equity (cont’d)

Company
Balance as of 31 December
2016

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive in-
come (loss)

Transfer of revaluation re-
serve to retained earnings
Balance as of 31 December
2017

Impact of application of IFRS
15

Balance as at 1 January
2018 (restated)

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive in-
come (expenses)

Transfer of Revaluation re-
serveto retained earnings
Balance as of 31 December
2018

The notes on pages 16 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

Notes
2.14,3.2

2.21

7 15; 17

Accumulated

Share Legal re- Revaluation Other re- retained earn-  Total eq-
capital serve reserve serves ings/ (losses) uity

2756 574 1751 (43) 355 5393

- - = - 2236 2235

- - - 22 40 62

- - - 22 2275 2297

- - (42) - 42 -

2756 574 1709 (21) 2672 7690

- - - - 367 367

2756 574 1709 (21) 3039 8 057

- - - - 571 571

- = 638 17 7 732

- - 638 17 648 1303

- - (44) - 44 -

2756 574 2 303 (4) 3731 9 360

Algirdas Sabiinas

Chief Accountant

Daiva Mikuléné

13




UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J, Basanavidiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuanla

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows

Group Company
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December December
Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 1141 301 571 2235
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 7 854 825 664 620
{Gain) from disposal of property, plant and equipment

) - (14 - (213
and investment property 21
Lrlnepalrment and write-off (reversal) of amounis receiva- 4 78 504 79
Impairment and write-off (reversal) of goodwill and 200 i _ i
property, plant and equipment
impairment and write-off of inventories 10, 20 100 153 100 153
Elimination of financial (income) costs 22 75 287 60 (2 023)
Income tax expenses 23 10 49 35 14
Changes in working capital:
{Increase) decrease in inventories 1293 (2790) 1315 (2 753)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables (708) (554) (640) (813)
{Increase) decrease in contract asset (2 416} - (2 328) -
{Incrggse:) decrease in non-current receivables from i 1 ©1) )
subsidiaries
Decrease {increase) in other receivables and other cur- 183 483 93 456
rent assets
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 94 - 115 -
Ibrllgrease {decrease) in trade and other accounts paya- 1 1826 107 1539
Incraase (decrease) in taxes payable and other current
liabilities 18 (372) 125 (277) (10)
Income tax (paid) (48) (71) (b5} {18)
Net cash generated from (to) operating activities 403 689 173 (557)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (831) (820) (641) (563)
Acquisition of intangible assets and prepayments 8 (223} (29) (223) (29)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 15 - 13
Investments in subsidiaries (acquisiticn) - - - 41)
Interest received 22 - - - 11
Dividends received - - 10 37
Net cash flows generated (to) Investing activities (1054) (834) (854) (572)

14
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavitiaus str. 122, Utena, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows (cont’'d)

Group Company
Year ended 31 De- Year ended 31 Decem-
cember ber
Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings received 1653 650 1793 1850
Repayment of borrowings (860) (738) (1 060) (977)
Interest paid 22 (114) (98) (137) (137)
Other payments to non-controlling interest 1 - (183) - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - (41) . =
Net cash flows (to) from financing activities 679 (410) 596 736
:\éittlsncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equiva- 28 (555) (85) (393)
E:tslreayr;c;rcash equivalents at the beginning 675 1230 205 598
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 703 675 120 205

The notes on pages 16 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Algirdas Sabiinas &,7
Chief Accountant Daiva Mikuléné 5‘,\&3534 L
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavitiaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

Utenos TrikotaZzas AB (hereinafter *the Company”) is a jeint-stock company registerad in the Republic of Lithuania on 6 De-

cember 1994, The address of its registered office is as follows:
Basanavitiaus st. 122,

Utena,

Lithuania

The Company is engaged in production of knit-wear and textile articles.

The shares of Utenos TrikotaZzas AB are listed on the Official List of the NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the shareholders of the Company were as follows:

2018 2017
Number of Interest held Number of Interest held
shares held (%) shares held (%)
UAB Kencernas SBA 7 821 82.31 7294 76.78
Algirdas Sabinas 950 10 850 10
Investment Fund East Capital Asset _ - 527 555
Management '
Cther shareholders 732 7.69 732 7.69
9 503 100 8 503 100
82.31 % of the Company's shares are owned by the parent company UAB Koncernas SBA, which is owned by Mr. A. Mar-

tinkevicius.

As at 31 December 2018 the number of employees of the Company was 793 (as at 31 December 2017, 791).

The Group {hereinafter "the Group”} consists of the Company and the following subsidiaries:

Group’s share (%) as at

::i':;ered 31 December
2018 2017 Activity
Satrija AB Satrjos g. 3, 89.78 89.78 Sewing  of
Raseiniai clothes
Gotija UAB Laisves  al. 100 100 Retail trade
33, Kaunas
Matrosovo .
PAT ~ MTF 13, Mukate- 98.95 98.95 Production  of
Mrija . knitted articles
vas, Ukraina

As at 31 December 2018 the number of employees of the Group was 1 164 (31 December 2017 —was 1 124).
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavifiaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

1. General information (cont'd)

The Company’s management authorised these financial statements on 28 March 2018. The shareholders of the Company
have a statutory right to sither approve these financial statements or not approve them and reqguire the management to prepare
a new set of financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
baen consistently applied to all the years presented.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as
adopted by the EU.

These financial statements have been prepared con a historical cost basis, except for buildings that have been measured at
revalued amounts and derivative financial instruments accounted at fair value.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) inter-
pretations

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The final version of IFRS 9 Financial instruments reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previcus versions of IFRS 9, The standard introduces new re-
quirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The management has applied the standard
and evaluated that the application of the standard did not have material impact on the Company’s and the Group's financial
statements, which is disclosed in Note 2.11

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model o account for revenue arising from contracts with customersirrespective of income-
bearing contract type or entity. Standard requiremets are applied in recognition and assessment of income or lossess from a
particular nen-financial asset that is not attributable to the Company's usual activities, rendering (for example, rendering of
non-current assets or intangible assets). Explicit information has to be rendered, including the general amount of income clas-
sification to component; information about operating liabilities; balances of changes in contract assets and liabilities within
periods of time and the principal decisions as well as accounting assessment. The managemeant has applied the standard and
evaluated that the application of the standard had impact on the Company’s and the Group's results, which is disclosed in Note
2.22.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Confracts with Customers (Clarifications)

The objective of the Clarifications is to clarify the IASB's intentions when developing the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue
from Conliracts with Customers, particularly the accounting of identifying performance obligations amending the werding of the
“separately identifiable” principle, of principal versus agent considerations including the assessment of whether an entity is a
principal or an agent as well as applications of contrel principle and of ficensing providing additional guidance for accounting
of intellectual property and royalties. The Clarifications also provide additicnal practical expedients for entities that either apply
IFRS 15 fully retrospectively or that elect to apply the modified refrospective approach. The management has applied the
clarification’s and evaluated that there did not have material impact on the Company’s and the Group’s performance results in
addition to the impact of IFRS 15, which is disclosed in Note 2,21

IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share based Payment Transactions {Amendments)

The Amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the meas-
urement of cash-seftled share-based payments, for share-based payment fransactions with a net settlement feature for with-
holding tax obligations and for modifications to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classifi-
cation of the transaction from cash-seitled to equity-settied. The amendment of the standard did not have material impact on
the Company's and the Group's financial statements as the management evaluated that the Company and the Group does not
have any share based transaction payments.

IAS 40: Transfers to Investment Property (Amendments)

The Amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into,
or out of investment proparty. The Amendments state that a change in use cccurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The management concluded that the application of the
amendments did not have material impact on the Company’s and the Group's financial statements as there were no changes
in the amendment of the use of the Company's and the Group’s investment praoperty
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviélaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Al amounts are in EUR thousand uniess otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

IFRIC INTERPETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The Interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or
a non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related
asset, expense or income. The Interprefation states that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the ex-
change rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt
of advance consideration. The Company's magement has evaluated that adoption of the standards had no material impact to
the Company's and the Group’s financial statements as the Company and the Greup did not have any nen-monetary assets
or nen-monetary liabilities arising from prepayment received or made.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014 - 2016 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to [FRSs,
The management has evaluated that the improvements will have no material impact on the Company's and the Group’s finan-
cial statements as the Company does not apply international financial reperting standards for the first time and the Company
did net have any new investments to associates or joint ventures.

¥» IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: This improvement deletes the short-term
exemptions regarding disclosures about financial instruments, employee benefits and investment entities, applicable for
first time adopters.

» IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: The amendments clarify that the election to measure at fair
value through profit or loss an investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is venture capital
organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-
by-investment basis, upon initial recegnition.

Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 16: Leases

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentational and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer ('lesses’)
and the supplier (‘lessor’). The new standard requires lessees to recognize most leases on their financial statements. Les-
sees will have a single accounting model for all leases, with certain exceptions. Lessor accounting remains substantially un-
changed. The Company's magement has evaluated that adoption of the standard will have no matertal impact to the Com-
pany's and the Group's financial statements.

Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ven-
tures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in 1AS 28, in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence
of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a
subsidiary or not}. A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business,
even if these asseis are housed in a subsidiary. In December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment
indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet
been endorsed by the EU. The managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this amendment.

IFRS 9: Prepayment features with negative compensation (Amendment)

The Amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted.
The Amendment allows financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a party to a contract either to pay or
receive reasonable compensation for the eariy terminaticn of the contract (so that, from the perspective of the holder of the
asset there may be ‘negative compensation’}, to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this amendment,

IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application per-
mitted. The Amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular impairment requirements, of long term interests in
associates and joint ventures that, in substance, form part of the ‘net investment' in the associate or joint venture should be
governed by IFRS 9, IAS 28 or a combination of both. The Amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instru-
ments, befors it applies IAS 28, to such long-term interests for which the equity method is not applied. In applying IFRS 9, the
entity does not take account of any adjustments to the carrying amount of leng- term interests that arise from applying |AS 28.
These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the imple-
mentation of these amendments.
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavi¢iaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND CONMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd}

IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. The
Amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement has occurred. The amendments
also clarify how the accounting for a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement affects applying the asset ceiling requirements.
These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Tha managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the imple-
mentation of these amendments.

IFRIC INTERPETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. The
Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application
of IAS 12, The Interpretation provides guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separately or together, examination
by tax authorities, the appropriate method to reflect uncertainty and accounting for changes in facts and circumstances, This
Interpretation has not yef been endorsed by the EU. The managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation
of this interpretation.

IFRS 3: Business Combinations {Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments in Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) aimed at resolving the difficulies that arise
when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The Amendments are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to
asset acquisitions that ocour on or after the beginning of that peried, with earlier application permitted. These Amendments
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The managment has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of these
amendments.

IAS 1 Presentational of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors: Definition of ‘material’ {Amendments)

Tha Amendmenis are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted. The
Amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied. The new definition states that, 'Information is
material if omitting, misstating or cbscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of these financial statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity’. In addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been improved. The Amendments
alsc ensure that the definition of material is consistent across all IFRS Standards. These Amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Company’s management has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amend-
ments.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. These
annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group/Company has not yet evaluated the impact of the
implementation of these improvements.

+ IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an
entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The
amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity
does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.

* [AS 12 Income Taxes: The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments
classified as equity should be recognized according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributa-
ble profits has been recognized.

= JAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments clarify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a qualifying asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related fo that qualifying asset remains outstanding at
that point, that borrowing is to be included in the funds that an entity borrows generally.

Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

The IASB issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting on 28 March 2018. The Cenceptual Framework
sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing con-
sistent accounting policies and assistance to others in their efforts to understand and interpret the standards. IASB also issued
a separate accompanying decument, Amendments to References fo the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which
sefts out the amandments to affected standards in order to update references to the revised Conceptual Framework. Its objec-
tive is to support transition to the revised Conceptual Framework for companies that develop accounting policies using the
Conceptual Framework when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction. For preparers whe develop accounting
policies based on the Conceptual Framework, it is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The Group and the Company plans to adopt the above mentioned standards and interpretations on their effectiveness date,
provided they are endorsed by the EU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2, Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.2 Business combinations and consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value at the acquisition date and the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquire, if any. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree sither
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and
included in administrative expenses.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, at the acquisition date, fair value of the acquirer's praviously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date in the statement of comprehensive income. Any
contingsnt consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in
accordance with 1AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Gocdwill is initlally measured at cost being the excess of the aggregaie of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the statermment of
comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and then the reporting date
is assessed for impairment.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the Group's internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is respansible for allacating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

2.4 Measurement and presentational currency

{a} Functional and presentational currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measurad using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which each entity operates (hereinafter the functional currency). These financial statements are pre-
sented in euro (EUR), which is the Company's functional and the Group’s and the Company's presentational currency.

(b) Transacfions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially converted based on their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Moretary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted based on their respeactive functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Differences arising on settlement or convertion of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the excepfion of monetary
items that are designated as the Group's net investment of a foreign subsidiary. These are recognised in OC| until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or less. Tax charges attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI).

{c) Group companies

Tha functional currency of the Group Companies is EUR, except for subsidiary PAT MTF Mrija, which operates in Ukraine and
its functicnal currency is UAH (Ukrainian hryvnia).
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies {(cont'd)

2.4 Measurement and presentational currency

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentational cur-
rency are converted into the presentational currency as follows:

(i} assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are converted at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(il income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are converted at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, inwhich
case income and expenses are converted at the rate on the dates of transactions);

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair vaiue adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and converted at the closing rate.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or seld, exchange differences that were recorded in other comprehensive
income are transfered to profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments

The Group and the Company engage in swap contracts for interest rate risk management purposes. Derivative financial instru-
ments are initially recognized at cost. Subseguent to initial recognition and measurement, outstanding swaps are carried in the
statement of financial position at the fair value. Fair value is derived from using the discounted cash flow method which is basad
on directly opservabie inputs (level 2 in fair value hierarchy). The estimated fair values of these coniracts are reported on a
gross basis as financial assets for instruments having a positive fair value, and financial liabilities for instruments with a negative
fair value.

Gain or loss from changes in the fair value of cutstanding forward contracts, swaps and other financial instruments, which are
not classified as hedging instruments, are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as they arise.

26 Hedge accounting
For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges ara classified intc two categories:

(a) fair value hedges which hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability; and
{b) cash flow hadges which hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated
with a recognized asset or liability or a forecasted transaction.

The Group and the Company use cash flow hedge.

In relation to cash flow hedges, which meet the conditions far hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized initially in other comprehensive income and the insffective
portion is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as profit or loss.

The gains or losses on effective cash flow hedges recognized initially in equity are either transferred to the statement of com-
prehensive income in the period in which the hedged transaction impacts the statement of comprehensive income or included
in the initial measurement of the cost of the related asset or liability.

For hedges, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument are taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income (profit or loss) for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. At that point in time, any cumulative gain er loss on the hedging instrument recognized in equity remains
in equity untif the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the net cumu-
lative gain or loss recognized in equity is transferred to the statement of comprehensive income,
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

26 Hedge accounting (cont’d)

The Group and the Company have entered into interest swap agreement with a purpose to hedge itself against a possible
fluctuation (increase) of EURIBOR on the loan taken from a bank {Note 18) and with this action fixed the payable interest rate.

These hedged items are subject to a single risk component, thus the Company hedged an item in its entirety, not splitting inio
different components.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the interest rate swap
match the terms of the fixed rate loan {i.e., noticnal amount, maturity, payment and reset dates) and the terms of electricity
forwards matches the terms of the highly probable forecast electricity purchase (i.e., notional amount, matutity). The Company
and Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relaticnships as the underlying risks are identical to the hedged
risk component. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Company and Group uses the hypothetical derivative method and com-
pares the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument against the changes in fair value of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk.

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

+ Differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument;

« The counterparties’ credit risk differently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging insttument and hedged item;
+ Changes to the forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged items and hedging instruments.

2.7 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

After initial recognition (Note 2.2), goodwili is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is included
in intangible assets in the statement of financial position. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment (Note 2.10). Gains and
losses arising from the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwiil relating to the entity sold.

{b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are caplitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use a specific
software. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (3 to & years).

2.8 Property, plant and equipment
Buildings are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Any increase in value of buildings is recorded in the revaluation reserve, except for the cases and only at the amount recovering
the revaluation decrease of the same asset that was previously recognised as expenses. In this casa it is recognised as income.
Any decrease is first set off against increase In the value of the same asset frem the previous valuation, and only the remaining
difference is recognised as expenses. At a write - off or depreciation of revalued assets, the respective part of the Revaluation
reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve directly to retained earnings. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency
(at least every 5 years, unless there are significant changes in the market of buildings) to ensure that the fair value of a revalued
asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

The remaining property, plant and equipment is carried at acquisition cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable
purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and lccation for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow to the Company and the Group and the cost of the
itern can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to general and administrative expenses during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment {(con’t)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows;

Buildings 10 - 80 years
Structures 16 - 25 years
Vehicles 4 ~7 years

Machinery 5 —15years

Other property, plant and equipment 2 — 20 years
Land is not depreciated.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date, ensuring that they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in property, plant and
equipment.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount (Note 2.10). Impairment of property, plant and equipment as well as reversals of impairment during the
year are included into operating expenses in the profit and loss.

Borrowing costs incurred in relation to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other borrowing
costs are expensesd in financial activity expenses as incurred.

Construction in progress is transferrad to appropriate groups of property, plant and equipment when it is completed and available
for its intended use.

When property is written-off or otherwise disposed, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the financial statements
and any related gains or losses are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in operating
prefit.

2.9 Investment property

Property held for long-term rantal yields and {or} capital appreciation and which is not occupied by the Company and the Group
is classified as investment property. Investment property comprises freehold land and buildings.

investmeant properly is staied at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
eccnomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to general and administrative expenses during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Builkdings are depreciated ovar their expected useful fife of 40 to 70 years using the straight—line method
to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value. Depreciation of investment property is included into other operating
expenses caption.

When the carrying amount of an asset is higher than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recov-
erable amount (Note 2.10). Impairment of investment property as well as reversals for the year are included into operating ex-
penses.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are included info operating
profit.

23



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviiaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of slgnificant accounting policies {cont'd)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortization and depreciation are reviewed for impairment whensver events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assefs are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Non-financial agsets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
financial statement date. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

2.11 Financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments repfaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recogniticn and Measurement for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

The Company applied IFRS & prospectively, with an initial application date of 1 January 2018, no practical expedients have
been used. The Company has nct restated the comparative information, which continues to be reported under I1AS 39.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liakility or equity instrument
of another entity.

)] Financial assets

Initial recegnition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's/Company’s businass model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component, the Group/Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivabies that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
QOCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI)' on the piincipal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referrad to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s/Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how the Group/Company manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting confrac-
tual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. -

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group/Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’d)
2.11 Financial assets and financial liabilities (cont'd)

Subsequent measuremant

After initial recegnition, The Group/Company measures a financial asset at;
a) Amortised cost (debt instruments)
b} Fair value through other comprehensive income OC| with recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
{debt insiruments). The Group/Company did not have such items as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,
¢) Fair value through other comprehensive income OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derscog-
hition (equity instruments). The Group/Company did not have such items as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
d) Fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.5).

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group/Company measures financial assets at amertised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

i) The financial asset is held within a business medel with the ohjective to hold financial assets in order to collect con-
tractual cash flows and
ii} The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
maodified or impaired,

The Group's/Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade, other current and non-current receivables, loans
granted and contract assets (if any).

Financial assets through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recogniticn at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value,
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivtives, including separated embedded deribatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments {according to [FRS9). Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl),
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profir or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or Joss (Note
2.5).

Impairment of financial assets

According to IFRS 9, the Group/Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference bsetween the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group/Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is raquired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

a) Impairment of trade receivables

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group/Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group/Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group/Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experi-
ence, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The Group/Company consid-
ers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due or when indications exist that the debtors or a group
of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, defaulf or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.11 Financlal assets and financial liabilities {cont’d)
a) Impairment of trade receivables (cont'd)

The Company/Gruop is also making allowances on individual assessment basis for certain debtors. The Company has identified
that the loss rates are less than 0.2% from total receivables, after considering forward looking estimates it was decided that
these do not have impact on loss rates.

b) Assessment of impairment of loans granted

The Company grants loans to the entities of the Group with a fixed maturity as it is disclosed in Note 4. Upon issuing a loan,
expected credit losses for 12 months are generally assessed and accounted. In subsequent reporting periods, when there is
no significant increase in credit loss risk related to the lesses, the Company modifies the balance of expected credit losses for
12 moenths with regard to the remaining debt amount that is not yet repaid at the assessment date. If a lessee’s financial position
significantly deteriorates in comparison to the pesition upon issuing of the loan, the Company accounts all expected credit
losses that fall within maturity term. Loans with estimated credit losses within maturity term are considered as credit-impaired
financial assets. Moreover, the Company evaluates the impairment of loans granted by calcutating discounted cash flows that
the lessee will probably earn in the future and will be able to repay debts with them (Note 4).

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recegnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and bor-
rowings and payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group/Company's financial liabilities include trade and other paya-
bles, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and finance lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classificétion, as described below:

Financial liakilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or less. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category alsc includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hadging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 8. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial positicn at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and other payables

After initial recognition, loans, borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recegnised in the statement of comprehensive income, when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amartised cost is calculated by taking into acceunt any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisaticn is included as finance costs in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetling of financial instrumenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, i.e. to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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. 2, summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd}
2.11 Financial assets (cont'd)

Impact of application of IFRS 8 as at 1 January 2018

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact to the Group/Company. Trade
receivables and other non-current and current financial assets (i.e., Loans) classified as Loans and receivables as at 31 De-
cember 2017 are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal
and interest. These are classified and maasured as Debt instruments at amortised cost beginning 1 January 2018. The Group
continued to measure financial assets and liabilities at fair value, hitherto accounted at fair value according to 39 I1AS except if
the financial instruments were attributed to hedging instruments used in hedging relationships as it is stated in IFRS 2 and IAS
39. There were no changes in classification and assessment of the Group's/Company’s financial liabilities.

As described above, the adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for impairment losses for
financial assets by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS
9 requires the Company to recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss
and contract assets. Upon adoption of IFRS 9 the Company has not recognised additional impaitment on the Company’s trade
receivables and contract assets, long term receivables and loans granted as according fo the management, with regard to the
Group's and the Company’s client solvency and amount payments, and the potential impact of future factors, the assessed
possible losses are not significant.

Upon initial application, all hedging relationships of the Group/Company met the criteria to be considered as continuing hedging
relationships, therefore, no changes in risk component identification or subsequens reclassifications through profit or loss was
made.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's/Company’s statement of financial position) when:

i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

ii} the GreupiCompany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from financial asset; or has undertaken a liability
to pay all received cash flows to a third party based on contract of disposal without significant overdue and (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assat, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation under the liability is discharged, canceiled or expires. When a
present financial liability is swaped with other liability to the same lessor, although, upon other conditions or when the present
liability terms are substantially changed, this change is recognised as initial derecognition and establishment of a new liability.
The difference between respective balances is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets (before 1 January 2018}

The Group's and the Company's financial assets comprise trade and other receivables, loans granted and investments into
subsidiaries.

All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributabie
transaction costs.

{a} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an sctive
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial
position date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company and the Group assess
at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
Impairment testing of trade and other amounts receivables is described in Note 4.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d}

2.11 Financial assets (cont'd)
{b) Investrnents in subsidiaries

The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment in separate financial statements. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the investment's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the investment's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Amounts receivable from subsidiary are
tested for impairment jointly with investments into the subsidiary.

Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date (before 1 January 2018)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Group and the Company will not collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. The reversal of impairmant losses praviously recognised is recorded when the decrease
in impairment loss can be justified by an event accurring after the write-down. Such reversal is recorded in the staterment of
somprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised to the extent it does not exceed the amor-
tised cost that would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In relation to trade and other receivables, an allowance for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group and the Company will not be able to
collect al! of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through
use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

In relation to investments in subsidiaries impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as general
and administrative expenses.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct job, other direct costs and related indirect production
overheads {basad on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Unrealised inventory is fully written-off.
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at nominal value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits on demand with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.

2.14 Share capital

(&) Ordinary shares

Crdinary shares are stated at their par value. Consideration received for the shares sold in excess over their par value is shown
as share premium. Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are accounted for as a deduction
from share premium.

(b) Treasury shares

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company's equity share capital, the consideration paid including any
attributed incremental external costs is deducted from sharsholders’ equity as treasury shares until they are sold, reissued, or
cancelled. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the sale, issuance, or cancellation of treasury shares. Where such

shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is presented in the consolidated financial statements as
a change in shareholders’ aquity.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’d)
2.15 Reserves
(a) Legal reserve

Legal reserve is compulsory under the Lithuanian regulatory legislation. Annual transfers of 5 % of net resuit are required until
the reserve reaches 10 % of share capital. The legal reserve cannot be used for payment of dividends and it is established to
cover future losses conly,

(b) Revaluation reserve

A Revaluation reserve is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaluation reserve in equity.
However, when new revaluated amount is higher than net book value previously recognised impairment for the asset accounted
in statement of comprehensive income, the increase in value of revaluated amount which neot exceed recognized impairment is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income or profit. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the consolidated
financial statement as a change in equity.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset's original cost. Additionally, accumulated
depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferrsd
to retained earnings.

{c) Reserve for acquisition of own shares

This reserve is created based on the decision of the shareholders for the acquisition of own shares.
(c} Foreign currency conversion reserve

The foreign currency conversion reserve is used for conversion differences arising on consolidation of financial statements of
forelgn subsidiaries. Exchange differences are classified as equity in the consolidated financial statements until disposal of the
investment. Upon disposal of the corresponding assets, the accumulated amount of conversion reserve is recognised as income
or expensges in the same period when the gain or loss of disposal is recognised.

(e) Cash flow hedge reserve

This reserve represents the effective part of the change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps),
used by the Group and the Company to secure the cash flows from interest rate risk, at the reporting date. The reserve is
accounted for according to the requirements of IFRS 9 (Note 3.1).

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income when trade liabilities are written-off or amortised.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowlng costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substan-
tial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use, construction production or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective assets. Other borrowing costs are expensesd as incurred. Borrowings are classified as non-current if the completion
of a refinancing agreement before the reporting date provides evidence that the substance of the liability at the reporting date
was non-current.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont'd)
218 Income tax

{a) Current income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually irespective of the overall results of the Group.

Income tax expanses reported in these financial statements is based on the calculaticn made by the management in accord-
ance with tax legislation of the Republic of Lithuania and the Republic of Ukraine.

Profit for the year 2018 of the Group's subsidiaries that operate in Lithuania is taxable at a rate of 15 % (15 % in 2017), corporate
income tax rate in Ukraine is 18 % {18 % in 2017).

In accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of Lithuania, starting from 1 January 2008, taxable losses, except for losses
related to transfar of securities and (or) financial instruments may be carried forward for an unlimited period. Starting from 1
January 2014, tax loss carry forward that is deducted cannot exceed 70 % of the taxable profit of the current financial year.

The losses from disposal of securities and (or) derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years
and only be used to reduce taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.

Investment incentive can be carried forward for 5 ysars.

In accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of Ukraine, starting from 2012, tax loss carry forward that is deducted cannot
exceed 25 % of the taxable profit of the current financial year.

b} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.19 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at incaption
date of whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent cn the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

(a) Financial lease - the Company or the Group is the lesses

Leases of property, plant and equipment when the Company or the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as financial leases. Financial leases are capitalised at the lease's commencemsent at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and financial charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the financial balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of financial charges, are included in long-term payables except for instalments due within 12 months which are included in
current liabilities. The property, plant and equipment acquired under financial leases is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d}
219 Lease
b) Operating lease - the Gompany or the Group is the lessee or the lessor

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Payments received under operating leases {net of any incentives given to the
lesses) are credited to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Property (land and buildings) leased
out under operating leases are incluged in investment property in the statement of financial position (Note 2.9).

2.20 Employee benefits
(@) Social security contributions

The Company and the Group pay social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (hersinafter the Fund) on behalf
of its employees based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution
plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or constructive ohligations to pay further
contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay benefits to all employees related to employee service in the cument
and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as expenses on an accrual basis and are included in staff costs.

(h) Bonus plans

The Company or the Group recognises a liability and an expenses for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there was a
practice applied in the past that has created a constructive cbligation.

{c} Non-current employee benefits

According to the requirements of the Lithuanian Job Code, each employee leaving the Company at the age of retirement is
entitled to a one-off payment amounting to two-month salary.

Current year cost of employee benefits is recognised as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income. Previously incurred
service costs are recognised as an expenses on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.

Any gains or losses appearing as a result of curtailment and/or settlement are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

Employes benefit obligations are calculated based on actuarial assumptions, using the projected unit method. Remeasure-
ments, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a corre-
sponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measuments are not reclassified to prefit or loss in subsequent periods.

Obligation is recognised in the statement of financial position and reflects the present value of these bensfits on the date of the
statement of financial position. Present value of the non-current obligation to employees is determined by discounting estimated
future cash flows using the discount rate which reflects the interest rate of the Government bonds of the same currency and
similar maturity as the employment benefits.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.21 Revenue recognition

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Conastruction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies, with fimited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring geods or services to a customer.

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard alsc specifies the acceunting for the incre-
mental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard reguires
extensive additional disciosures presented in the financial statements.

The Company and the Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2018. The cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 is recognised at the date of initial application
as an adjustment

to the opening balance of retained earnings. Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and

continues to be reported under 1AS 11, |AS 18 and related Interpretations.

Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that
are not completed at this date. The Company elgcted to apply the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1 January
2018. The Company and Greoup did not apply any additional practical measures.

Sat out below, are the amounis by which each financial statement lina item is affected as at and for the year ended 31 De-
cember 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. The first column shows amounts prepared under IFRS 15 and the sec-
ond column shows what the amounts would have been had IFRS 15 not been adopted:

Statement of comprehensive income for the year 2018

Group
Amounts in EUR according to:
2018, accord- 2018, according to Increasef
_ingtoIFRS15  IAS 11 and IAS 18 (decrease)
Sales - 30 897 (30 897)
Revenue from contracts with customers 30 457 - 30 457
Cost of goods sold (24 601) (24 983) 382
Profit 5856 5914 : {58)
Sales expenses (2 037) (2 037} -
General and administrative expenses (2739 (2739} -
Income from other activities 138 138 -
Expenses from other activities {(18) {(18) -
Operating profit 1200 1258 (58)
Financial income 225 225 -
Financial expenses (274) (274) -
Income (loss) before tax 1151 1209 1209
income tax (10) {10 -
Net profit {loss) for the year 1141 1198 {58)
Net profit (loss) attributable to:
To shareholders of the Company 1107 1165 (58}
Non-controlling interest 34 34 -
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.21 Revenue recognition {cont’d)

Statement of comprehensive income for the vear 2018

Company Amounts in EUR according to:
2018, accord- 2018, according to JAS Increase/

_ing to IFRS 15 11 and IAS 18 (decrease)
Sales - 27 411 (27 411)
Revenue from contracts with custom-
ers 26 971 - 26971
Cost of goods sold (21 997) (22 379) 382
Profit 4974 5032 {58)
Sales expenses {1916) {1918) -
General and administrative expenses {1933) (1933) -
Income from cther activities 52 52 -
Expenses from other activities (11) {11 -
Operating profit 1166 1224 (58)
Financial income 108 108 -
Financial expenses (668) (668} -
Income (loss) before tax 606 664 (58)
Income tax (35) (35) -
Net profit (loss) for the year 571 629 (58)
Net profit (loss) attributable to:
To shareholdars of the Company 571 629 (58)

Non-controlling interest -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thcusand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Balance in EUR according to:

Group Notes czo(:":I?;l;cto czoorzl?ﬁ;io Increasel
IFRS 15 IAISA15 11a;3nd {decrease)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 6 655 655 -
Nen-current tangible assets 7 9661 9 661 -
Investment assets 8 90 90 -
Investments into subsidiaries e] - - -
Trade and other receivables - - -
Receivables from subsidiaries 25 - - -
Deferred income tax assets 23 104 104 -
10 510 10 510 -
Current assets
lnventories 10 5827 7 846 (2 019)
Trade receivables 11 2419 2419 -
Contract assets 291 2418 - 2418
Other current assets 12 339 427 (88)
Current financial assets 12 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 703 703 -
11 704 11 395 309
Total assets 22 214 21 905 309
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavitiaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2, Summary of significant accounting policies {cont'd}
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ngto  IAS1iendlas orease
IFRS 15 18
Equity, owned by shareholders of the Company
Share capital 14 2 758 2 758 -
Legal resarve 15 574 574 -
Revaluation reserve 15 4 340 4 340 -
Reserve for acqguisition of own shares 15 90 90 -
Foreign exchange recalculation reserve 15 936 936 .
Reserve of change in cash flows 15 )] {4 -
Hedge reserve - -
Retained earnings (losses) 2 150 1841 309
10 842 10 533 309

Non-controlling interest 25 219 219 -
Total equity 11 161 10 852 300
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 379 379 -
Borrowings from subsidiaries 1265’ . . .
Deferred income tax liability 23 829 829 -
Derivative financial instruments 15 . . -
Employee benefit provisions 17 240 240 -

1441 1441 -
Non-current liabilities
Current portion of borrowings 18 2 871 2 871 -
Current finansiniai liabilities 25 1239 1 23g -
Derivative financial instruments 15 13 13 -
Trade payables 2577 2 577 -
Payables to other related parties and subsidiaries 25 35 36 -
Income tax payable 4 4 i
Contract liapility 04 } 94
Accrued expensas and other current liabilities 18 2778 2 872 (94)

9612 9612 -
Total liabilities 11 053 11 053 -
Total equity and liabilities 22 214 21 905 309
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{(All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.21 Revenue recoghition (cont'd)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Balance in EUR according to:

2018, ac-
Company Notes cth(:'L?ﬁact;) cording to  Increase
9 IAS11and  (decrease)
IFRS 15 IAS 18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 6 249 249 -
Noen-current tangible assets 7 6 130 6130 -
Investment assets 8 90 90 -
Investments into subsidiaries 9 1 650 1 550 -
Trade and other receivables - - -
Receivables from subsidiaries 25 1788 1788 -
Deferred income tax assets 23 - - -
9 807 9 807 -
Current assets
inveniories 10 5678 7 BO7 (2019)
Trade receivables 11 2 081 2 081 -
Contract assets 2.21 2 828 - 2328
Other current assets 12 277 277 -
h i -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 120 120
10 484 10 175 309
Total assets 21 20 291 19 982 309
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

EQUITY AND
Accord- According to Increase/
LIABILITIES ing to IAS 11 and IAg  (decrease)
IFRS 15 18
Equity, owned by shareholders of the Company
Share capital 2 756 2 756 -
Legal reserve 574 574
Revaluation reserve 2303 2303 .
Reserve for acquisition of own shares - - -
Foreign axchange recalculation reserve - - -
Reserve of change in cash flows 3] (4) -
Hedge reserve 373N 3422 309
Retained earnings (losses) 9 360 9 051 309
Non-controlling interest - - -
Total equity 9 360 9 051 309
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities 379 379
Borrowings 1200 1200 -
Borrowings from subsidiaries a74 374 .
Deferred income tax liability - - -
Derivative financial instruments 188 188 -
Employee benefit provisions 2141 2144 -
Non-current liabilities
Current portion of borrowings 16 2 871 2 871 -
Current finansiniai liabilities 25 1 240 1 240 -
Derivative financial instruments 15 13 13 -
Trade payables 2 498 2498 -
Payables tc other related parties and subsidiaries 25 57 57 -
Contract liabitities 115 - 115
Income tax payable _ _ R
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 18 1996 2 111 (115)
8 790 8 790 -
Total liabilities 10 931 10 931 -
Total equity and liabilities 20 291 10 982 309
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of signlficant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d}

Revenue from contracts with clients

The main activity of the Company and the Group is production of knitted articles and working clothes preduction for particular
orders of the clients. The service includes the full process of production from making yarns to preparation of fully finished
production. Revenue from contracts with clients is only recognized when the centrol of goods or services is transferred to the
client to the extent that reflects the remuneration which the Group and the Company expects to receive in return for these
goods or services.

As it is disclosed in the Note 5, the Company and the Group in their activities make income from sales of goods with their brand
and from other commercial activities. This type of revenue, in comparisen with knitted article production for particular orders
from clients, is relatively not significant. This type of revenue is recognised when the conirol aver goods is transferred to the
client and the goods are transferred at a particular time.

Knitted article and working clothes production for particular orders from clients

The main performance obligaticn arising from contracts with clients is to provide knitted article production defined in technical
specifications (knitting, dying, decorating, sewing, and cutting) service with a fixed price set for each produced {finished) knitted
article separately.

Income from contracts with clients is recognised when the control of goods or services is fransferred to the client at the amount
that the Company and the Group expect to receive in return for goods or services. The Company and the Group has evaluated
that it contrals goods or services before it transfers them to the client, therefore, the Company and the Group functions as the
main income contract party.

The Company and the Group supplies their production to clients only if they are fully finished. The Company and the Group
distributes contract price over the course of the article production with regard te relative cost of separate production level sales.

The Company has performed an analysis and evaluated that the Gompany and the Group fulfils their performance obligation
described in contracts with clients through a period of time (not on a set time) due to the following reasons:

- The Company and the Group, does not create an alternatively usable asset while providing article production services;
- The Company and the Group have an unconditional right to remuneration for partly-produced articles.

Calculating the income and cost accruing to them, the management uses the expected expenses and expected margin meihod.
According to managing and production accounting data, a production completion state of expected expenses at every stage of
production (calculating what portion of expected product cost is reached at a particular production stage). The caiculations are
completed by adding the applied margin te the calculated relative incomplete production level at separate production stages.
Thus, the calculated income amount is accounted in the statement of comprehensive income under revenue from coniracts
with custemers and assets arising from contracts with clients is accounted in the statement of comprehensive income under
sales costs. Costs related to this income amount are reflected in the statement of comprehensive income under sales costs
caption.

In preparation of financial statements according to IFRS and applying IFRS 15, the Company’s and the Group’s management
has to apply particular assumptions and assessments that have significant impact on amounts presented in financial state-
ments. Aceording to the management, the most significant assessments and uncertainties related to them arising while calcu-
lating and recognising revenue from contracts with clients are related to:

—  The used product margin, expected to be earned (percentags),
—  Application of historical management and preduction accoeunting data in calculating value ratios, related to each stage
of production.

Aside from aforementioned, the management considered to the recognition of other impact, such as the existance of significant
financial components, non-manetary payments, discounts applied, retum of products, etc. None of these terms appear in the
Company’s and the Group's contracts with clients, and according to the management, they are not significant in application of
IFRS 15.Due to IFRS 15 implementation, the Company and the Group did not capitalize the costs of signing or pursuing
contracts and did not recognize as assets due fo the insignificance of such asset.

38



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanaviéiaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(All ameounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
Contract assets, accrued income

Contract assets is the right to contribution for goods or services that have been performed in favour of the client {including
partial performance).

If the Company and the Group transfers goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Please see description of
accrued revenua above. Contract assets — accruad revenue — at the end of production cycle (usually within 60 days) after
fulfilling contractual liabifities and issuing an invoice, is accounted as trade receivable.

Contract liabilities- prepayments received

Contract liabilities consist of prepayments received frem customers for services to rendered or goods to be sold in the future.
As of 31 12 2017 these amounts where accounted for under the item of accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's and the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables usually have a set payment delay
term of 10-60 days.

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Company or the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow dis-
counted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Inter-
est income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

¢) Rental income

Payments received under operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessee) are credited to profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease (Note 2.20).

Revenue recognition until 1 January 2018

Ravenue is recoghised at fair value equal to the received o receivable remuneration for goods sold or services provided, as
the Company and the Group performs its usual activities, less VAT, returned goods and discounts.

d) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recegnised only when substantially all risks and benefits arising from ownership of
goods are transferred to the customer and amount of revenue can be estimated refiably.

e} Sewing services

Revenue from sales of sewing services is recognized when service is provided. At the year-end revenues from customer
spacific sewing orders in progress ara recognized by the reference to the stage of completion,

f} Interest income
Interest incoms is racognised on a time-propottion basis using the effective inferest methed. When a receivable is impaired,
the Company or the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow dis-

counted at the orlginal effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Inter-
est income on impaired loans is recognised using the ariginal effective interest rate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.21Revenue recognition (cont’d)

g) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
h) Rental income

Payments received under operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessee) are credited to profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease (Note 21).

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liakility in the Company’s and the Group’s financial
statements in the pericd in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

2.24 Earnings (losses) per share

The Group presents basic (EPS) and diluted earnings per share (DEPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adiusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary share-
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outsfanding for the effects of ali dilutive potential ordinary shares,
such as convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

2.25 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committad to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
2.26 Subsequent events

Subsequent events that provide additional information about the Group's and the Company’s position at the balance sheet
date {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Subsaquent events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

2.27 Current versus non-current classification

The Group and the Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

+ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period

Cr

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+ It is expacted to be settled in the normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting pericd

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

The Group and the Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.
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3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s and the Company's activities expose them to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's and the Company’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects of the financial performance of
the Group and the Company. Risk management is carried out by the Group's management.

Group Company
31 December 31 December
:;Eg:clal assets reported in the statements of financial po- 2018 2017 2018 2017
Borrowings and receivables, at amortised cost
Non-current amounts receivable from subsidiaries except
for prepayments ) ) 1035 1495
Trade receivables contract assefs (Note 11) 4 835 1715 4 409 1 445
Cash 703 675 120 205
5 538 2390 5 564 3145
Group Company
31 December 31 December
:;Eggmal liabilities reported in the statements of financial po- 2018 2017 2018 2017
_ Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 4 489 3 696 4 489 3696
Borrowings from subsidiaries “ - 1200 1061
Current financial liabilities _ - - 1 200
Trade payables 2577 2 668 2498 2849
Amecunts payable to subsidiaries - - 21 4
Amounts payable to other related parties 36 239 35 217
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities,other payables (Note
18) 909 874 665 546
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon ini-
tial recognition
Derivative short ferm and long term financial instruments 13 29 13 29
8024 7 506 8923 8 402
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UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavi¢iaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Al amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

3. Financial risk management {cont’d}

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

{a) Market risk
{iy Menetary assets and monetary liabilities foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Company operate internationally and carry cut significant part of their transactions in euros. Therefore, the
management believes that entities operating in Lithuania are not exposed to significant currency exchange risk.

The Ukrainian subsidiary incurred a foreign exchange loss amounting to EUR 171 thousand during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017; incurred a foreign exchange loss amounting to EUR 573 thousand) due te fluctuations in the official
exchange rate of Ukrainian gryvnia (UAH) o EUR set by the National Bank of Ukraine.

Foreign exchange risk for the Group’s and the Company's activity is reduced by matching sales transactions and accounts
receivable dominated in euro fo purchase transactions, accounts payable and borrowings denominated in euro.

From the beginning of the 2014, due to the geopolitical situation in Ukraine and significant drop in the value of UAH against
EUR, the Management of the Group and the Company re-designated loans granted, related interests and other long term
receivables as a part of net investment in Mrija PAT MTF, considering that the repayment of these amounts is not expected
in the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, gains (losses) arising from foreign exchange related to the monetary items considered to be part of net
investment into foreign operation are accounted in Group’s consclidated financial statements through other comprehensive
income (loss) in 2017, and 2018. Amount of monetary items attributed to net investment amounts to EUR 3.5 miilion as of 31
December 2018 and 2017 and foreign currency exchange difference related to this ameunt for the year 2018 comprises EUR
171 thousand (EUR 573 thousand in 2017), the difference is accounted in the Group's consolidated financial statements
through other comprehensive income.

Comprehensive income (loss) from foreign currency conversion included in the conselidated statement of changes
in equity in other comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of the Company:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Foreign currency exchange difference on monetary items attributed (171) 573
to net investments

Foreign currency conversion reserve on cther items 970 (550)
Total comprehensive income 799 23

Other comprehensive income (loss) from foreign currency conversion included in other comprehensive income attributable to
non-contrelling interests was not material. :

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in UAH exchange rate related to EUR, with
all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the carrying value of
monetary assets. The impact on the Group’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in the carrying value of net investment. The
Group's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in UAH Effect on pre-tax equity
rate with regard to (excludes the impact from
EUR Effact on profit before tax the change in results)
2018 +5% Decrease by 5 % Decrease by 5 %
- 5% Increase by 5 % Increase by 5 %
2017 +5% Decrease by 5 % Decrease by 5 %
- 5% Increase by & % Increase by 5 %
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3. Financial risk management (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

Borrowings with variable interest rates expose the Company and the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings with
variable interest rates of the Company and the Group in 2018, and 2017 were denominated in EUR.

The Group and the Company alsc enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the
difference between fixed and forecasted variable interest rates.

The Group and the Company analyse thair interest rate exposure on an annuai basis. The Group and the Company calculates
the impact on profit or loss by multiplying year-end balances of interest-bearing loans granted and barrowings {including
financial lease payables) by the estimated interest rate shift. Except for the current year's profit (loss), there is no impact on
the equity of the Group and the Company.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact of a 0.5 % increase/decrease in interast rates on the Company’s and the
Group's net result would be an increase/decrease at maximum of EUR 13 thousand {(in 2017, EUR 17 thousand) and EUR
12 thousand {in 2017, EUR 18 thousand), respectively, mainly as a result of highet/lower interest expensesfincome on bor-
rowings and loans granted.

{b) Credit risk

None of the Group’s and the Company’s customers comprise more than 10% of the Group’s and Company’s trade receiva-
bles. The Group and the Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low because its
customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets.

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash balances at bank, loans granted and trade receivables.

The table below summarises all credit risk exposures related to financial position items of the Group and the Company. Maxi-
mum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit risk reduction:

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) 703 675 120 206
Amounts receivable and contract assets (Note

11) 4835 1715 4 409 1 445
Non-current loans granted and amounts re-

ceivable except for prepayments (Note 25) - - 1035 1485
Total 5 538 2 390 5564 3145

if) Credit quality of financial assets
Trade client quality is assessed with respect to their financial position, work experience and other facts.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed considering historical data of
their performance as independent credit ratings are not available.
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3. Financial risk management (cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors {cont’d}

(a) Trade receivables and contract assets — trade customers with no independent rating

Group Company
31 December 31 December
20138 2017 2018 2017

New trade customers (up to 12 months) 829 74 628 74
Current trade customers {more than 12

months) that fully fulfilled their obligations in 4206 1641 3781 1371
the past

Total 4835 1715 4 409 1445

Impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet date based on provision matrix and individual assessment in order to
evaluate expected credit losses, Provision rates are assessed based on the number of days past due payment, grouping clients
based on similar previous credit loss risk experience. Calculations reflect the possibility to calculate the amount, money value
in time, reasonable and predicabie information on past events, current conditions and forecasts of expected economic condi-
tions, that can be obtained at the physical financial statement date. Based on the performed analysis, The Company/Group

assessed that itg clients may be aftributable to the low risk category.

b) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding cash on hand.

Group
31 December
2018 2017
Arating 600 662
BBB+ rating o7 -
No rating 2 7
Total 699 669

*Independent ratings established by Fitch agency.

Company
31 December
2018 2017
19 199
97 -
1 1
117 200

as of 31 December 2018, the Company's nhon-current receivables and loans granted comprises of receivables only from PAT

"Mrija" {Note 25).

Trade receivables that are past due are not treated as impaired when the Group's and the Company’s management expects

to recover these receivables.

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Not past due receivables 4170 1307 3854 1137
Past due not impaired

Past due up to 30 days 428 333 346 233
Past due 31 ~ 60 days 5 58 5 58
Past due 61 — 180 days 24 3 04 3
Past due more than 181 days 208 14 180 14
Total past due not impaired 665 408 555 308
Overdue and impaired

Past due up to 180 days _ 72 . 72
Past due more than 181 days 197 121 170 94
Impairment allowance for trade receivables {197) (193) (170) (166)
Total accounts receivable and contract

assets after impairment 4835 1715 4 409 1445
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3. Financial risk management (cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors {cont'd)

If the Company does not receive all loans granted and trade receivables according to the agreed payment terms, loss of
trade receivables impairments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

() Liquidity risk

The Group's and the Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit lines to mest its commitments at a given date in accordance with its strategic plans.

Group's current assets exceeded its current liabilities by 2 092 thousand EUR as of 31 December 2018 (current assets
exceeded current liabilities by EUR 3 172 thousand as at 31 December 2017). Group's fiquidity (current assets / current
liabilities) and quick ({current assets - inventory) / current liabilities) ratios as at 31 December 2018 were 1.22 and 0.61
respectively (1.48 and 0.44 as at 31 December 2017 respectively}. Company's {AB Utenos trikotazas) current assets exceeded
its current liabilities by 1 694 thousand as at 31 December 2018 (current assets exceeded current liabilites by EUR 2 920
thousand as at 31 Dacember 2017). Company's liquidity (current assets / current liabilities) and quick ({current assets -
inventory) / current liabilities) ratios as at 31 December 2018 were 1.19 and 0.55 respectively (1.50 and 0.35 as at 31
December 2017 respectively).

The table below summarises the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities. The financial liabilities are ciassified into relevant
maturity graupings based on the remaining period to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows. Fair value of accounts payable and other financial
liabilities due within 3 months or less are equal to their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant.

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, based
on contractual undiscounted payments:

Group

Less than 3 3to12
31 December 2018 months months 110 § years Total
Berrowings from the banks with future
intrest 282 2 389 374 3045
Derivative financial instruments 13 - - 13
Trade payables and other finansial liabilities 2613 - - 2613
Balance as at 31 December 2013 2 908 2 389 374 5 671

Less than 3 3to12
31 December 2017 months months 1to 5 years Total
Borrowings from the banks with future intrest 199 714 2 879 3792
Derivative financial instruments 19 - 10 29
Trade payables and other finansial liabilities 3781 - - 3781
Balance as at 31 December 2018 3 999 714 2 889 7 602

Company

Less than 3 3to12
31 December 2018 months months 1to 5 years Total
Borrowings from the banks with future intrest 282 2389 374 3045
Payables for subsidaries - 1 1246 1247
Derivative financial instruments 13 - - 13
Trade payables and other finansial liabilities 2 555 - - 2 558
Balance as at 31 December 2018 2 850 2390 1620 6 860
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3. Financial risk management (cont’'d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)

Less than 3 dto12
31 December 2017 months months 1to 5 years Total
Borrowings from the banks with future intrest 199 714 2879 3792
Payables for subsidaries - 200 1100 1 300
Derivative financial instruments 19 - 10 29
Trade payables and other finansial liabilities 3418 - - 3416
Balance as at 31 December 2018 3634 914 3 989 8 537
Grou 1January Cash Reclassifica- Change in Interests for 31 Decem-
P 2018 flows tion fair value the year ber 2018
Current portion of non-cur-
rent borrowings 860 812 2335 - 103 4 110
Nen-current portion of bor-
rowings 2 B36 (133) (2 335) - 379
Derivative financial instru-
ments 29 - - (16) - 13
3725 679 - (16} 114 4 502
e . Interests for
1 January Reclassifica- Change in 31 Decem-
Company 2018 Cash flows . fair value the year*and ber 2018
net-offs
Current portion of non-cur-
rent borrowings 1060 613 2335 - 103 4111
Non-current portion of bor-
rowings 3897 (17) {2 335) - 34 1579
Derivative financial instru-
ments 29 - - (16} - 13
4 986 596 - {16) 137 5703
* Net-off was made with dividends, [oans received and interests payable.
Grou 1 January Cash Reclassifica- Change in Interests for 31 Decem-
P 2017 flows tion fair value the year ber 2017
Current pertion borrowings
and intrest 738 (836) 850 - 98 860
Non-current portion of bor-
rowings and intrest 3046 650 (860) - 2 836
Derivative financial instru-
ments 52 - - (23) - 29
3836 {188) - (23) 98 3725

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)
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3.1 Financial risk factors {cont'd)

Interests for

1 January Cash Reclassifica- Change In 31 Decem-
Company 2017 flows tion  fairvae YN Cher 2017
Current portion borrowings 738 (875) 860 . 137 860
and infrest
Other current financial bor-
owings o - 951 - - {(761) 200
Derivative financial instru- 5 468 850 (860} ) (1 361)* 3897
ments

6 206 736 - - {1 985} 4 957

* Net-off was made with dividends, loans received and interests payable.
3.2 Capital management

The Group's and the Company's objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Group’s and the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide retumns for sharehoiders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group and the Company defines its capital as equity and debt, including financial lease, less cash and cash equivalents.
The Group's and the Company's capital structure was as follows:

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Total borrowings 4489 3696 5689 4957
Less: i
ess: cash and cash equivalents (703) (675) (120) (206)

Not debt 3786 3021 5569 4752
Total equity

11 161 7 436 9360 7 690
Total capital

14 947 10 457 14 929 12442

Utenos trikofazas AB

According to the Lithuanian Law on Companies, the authorised share capital of a public company must be not less than EUR
40 thousand (EUR 2.5 thousand for a private company) and the shareholders' equity should not be lower than 50 % of the
company’s registered share capital. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries registered in Lithu-
ania complied with these requirements. Furthermore, the Group has to comply with Equity/Assets ratio identified in the loan
agreement with bank (Note 16).

Mrija PAT MTE

The shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary registered in Ukraine was negative as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017. Pursuant to the Ukrainian laws, a company may be put inte liguidation when its shareholders* equity becomes less than
the minimal amount of authorised share capital as defined in the Law on Companies at the moment of the company's
registration. On the date of these financial statements there were no decisions made or actions taken concerning PAT MTF
Mrija negative shareholders’ equity.
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3. Financial risk management (cont'd)

3.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received after selling an asset or paying to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group and the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the market participant's abllity to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group and the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabiiities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markats for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement is directly
or indirectly observable;

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unob-
servable.

For assats and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and the Company
determines whather transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based onthe
lowast level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Valuations are performed by the Group's and the Company’s management at each reporting date. For the purpose of fair
value disclosures, the Group and the Company have determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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3.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities {cont’d)

Valuation of assets according to the fair value hierarchy levels:

31 Decembher 2018 Group Company

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment property - - 162 - - 162
Buildings - - 6 816 - - 3778
Assets for which fair values are dis-
closed:
Receivable loans and other receivables from _ _ ) _ .
subsidiaries 10565
Trade receivables and contract assets - - 4 835 - - 4 409
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) - - 703 - - 120
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative financial instruments - 13 - - 13 -
Liabilities for which fair values are dis-
closed:
Borrowings from bank - - 4489 - - 4 489
Borrowings payabla to subsidiaries - - - - - 1200
Current financial liabilities - - - - - 1
Trade payables - - 2577 - - 2 498
Amounts payable fo subsidiaries - - - - - 21
Amounts payable fo related parties - - 3B - - 36
Accrued expenses and other current liabili- ) } ) )
ties (Note 18) 909 6865
31 December 2017 Group Company

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment property - - 258 - - 258
Buildings - - 4 221 - - 3072
Assets for which fair values are dis-
closed:
Receivable loans and other receivables . i} _ _
from subsidiaries 1495

Trade receivables - - 1715 - - 1445
Cash and cash equivalenis

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Derivative financiai instruments - - 675 - - 208

Assets measured at fair value:

Investment property - 29 - - 29 -

Liabilities with disclosed fair value

Borrowings from bank - - 3698 - - 3696

Borrowings payable to subsidiaries - - - - - 1081

Trade payables - - - - - 200

Amounts payable to subsidiaries - - 2 668 - - 2 649

Ameounts payable o related parties - - - - - 4

Accrued expenses and other current lia- ) _ ) )

bilities and other payables (Note 18) 239 217
- - 874 - - 546

The fair value of receivables from subsidiaries and leans granted to the subsidiary by the Company is estimated discounting
expected cash flows at market interest rates (Note 4}, management estimates that their fair value approximates carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, (level 3 in fair value hierarchy}. interest rate on the loans received by the Group and the
Company is subject to repricing at least every six months, therefore, it is deemed that fair value of loans received equals their
carrying amount.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company and the Group make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within. Esti-
mates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes certain judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the management
of the Group and the Company did not make any significant judgments. Estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Estimates of recoverable amounts of goodwill and investments in subsidiaries

The Group annually tests whether group test goodwill for impairment in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.7.
The recoveragle amount of cash-generating units has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of significant estimates as ocutlined below.

Investment in the subsidiary PAT MTF Mrija and related goodwill

At the Group's consolidated financial statement level, cash generating unit, related to the subsidiary PAT *“MTF Mrija" is comprised of
the entity’s property, plant and equipment, working capital and goodwill. “Utenos trikotazas”, a cash generating unit at a separate
financial statement level, related to the subsidiary PAT “MTF Mrija”, is comprised of investment costs, loans granted and other receiv-
ables,

The Company's investment in PAT MTF Mrija, including loan granted and receivable amounts, amounted to EUR 6 870 thousand
before impairment and to EUR 1 788 thousand after impairment as at 31 December 2048 and, respectively, EUR 6 718 thousand and
EUR 2 173 thousand had an additional accounting of impairment of EUR 500 thousand for the loan granted (investment is already
impaired by 100 %). The impairment is accounted for in the Company’s statement of comprehensive income under financial expenses
(Note 22)

Goodwill which is accounted in consolidated financial statements is related to PAT MTF Mrija. As at 31 December 2018, goodwill
before impairment amounted to EUR 195 thousand, after the impairment it amounted to EUR 0 thousand. Impairment was accounted
for in the statement of comprehensive income of the Group under general and administrative expenses (Note 20}. As at 31 December
2017 goodwill was not impaired and its value amounted to EUR 184 thousand. In 2018, an additiona! impairment of non-current assets
was formed amounting to EUR 20 thousand.

Previously described amounts of asset impairment were identified upen a result of cash-generating unit impairment test as at 31
December 2018, based on the calculated recoverable amount of cash-generating unit. Analogical impairment test was as well per-
formed on 31 December 2017 (no impairment indication). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit was determined based on the value in use calculation using discounted cash flow projections. Cash flows are based
on the forecast prepared by the management for the consecutive 5 years. The pre-tax discount rate of 30 % and 24 % in 2018 and
2017 was applied, respectively.

The following significant assumptions were used for the assessment of the value in use in 2018:

1 Basad on the current market situation, experience from prior perieds, increasing number of Group manufacturing orders and
actions of the Group management to significantly increase manufacturing orders and manufacturing employees in PAT MTF
Mrija in 2018 model assumpticns of increase in revenue from manufacturing activities of PAT MTF Miija by 58 % in 2019
comparing to 2018, by 8 % in 2020 comparing with 2019, by 5 % in 2021, comparing to 2020, and will grow by 2 % annuaily
after 2021, Planned actions to attract and motivate new employees will allow to reach growth of manufacturing quantities,
however due to that gross profit should decrease to 31-32 %.

2. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period were extrapolated using a 2 % growth rate that reflects the best estimate of the man-
agement based on the present situation of this business sector.

In the opinion of the Group's management, the most important and most sensitive assumptions are the discount rate and the reve-
nue growth. The sensitivity analysis o these assumptions is provided below.

Increase of pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash-flows by 1 % (i.e. from 30 % to 31 % with all other inputs remaining
stable) would not result in an additional impairment loss on amount receivable from subsidiary as at 31 December 2018 and (invest-
ment would not change as it Is impaired to zera), As at 31 December 2018, there would be no impairment of related goodwill in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Reduction in revenue growth frem manufacturing activities in 2019 by 29 % (i.e. from the forecasted 58 % to 29 %, with all other inputs
remaining stable) would resultin an additional impairment loss on amounts receivable from subsidiary amounting to EUR 233 thousand
as at 31 December 2018 in the separate financial statements of the Company.
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4, Critical accounting estimates and judgements {(cont’d}

Reducticn in revenue grth from manufacturing activities in 2020 by 7,5 % (i.e. from 15 % to 7,5 %, with all other inputs remaining
stable) would resu't in an additional impairment loss on amounts receivable from subsidiary amounting to EUR 73 thousand as at 31
December 2017 in the separate financial statements of the Company.

As of the date of these financial statements, the management of the Group do not expect any significant changes in assumptions
used, including revenue growth and discount rate.

Determination of the carrying value of the buildings

Revaluation of buildings is performed periodically {every 5 years, unless there are indications that there are significant differences in the
rarket of buildings) to ensure that the carrying value of buildings doas not significantly differ from fair value af the balance sheet date. In
2018, the Group’s and the Company's management identified changes in probable impairment of buildings and due to that, based on the
data of Qctober 2018, professional valuators performed an independent valuation {the latest valuation by professional valuators was
performed in 2013). The methods and principal assumpions, evaluation results and their accounting are disclosed in Note 7.

5. Segment information

The Group has two main business segments: production of knitted articles (that includes the Company and its subsidiary PAT MTF
Mrija) and production of working clothes {that includes subsidiary of the Company Satrija AB).

In assessing operational performance of segments Group's the Board takes into account the sales revenue, gross profit, EBITDA
{earnings before financial activity result, tax, depreciation and amortisation), profit (loss) ratios, therefore the report on the Group's
segments discloses these items in respect of sach segmant. As the Board also assesses other items of the statement of comprehen-
sive income by each segment, these items are presented in the report on the Group’s segments. Inter-segment transactions are
eliminated on consclidation.

2018 Production of Production of

knitted articles  working clothes Eliminations Total
External sales 27079 3378 30 457
internal sales 922 - (922) -
Total revenue 28 001 3378 (922) 30 457
Gross profit 5126 730 - 5 856
EBITDA 1609 423 - 2032
Profit 826 318 - 1141
Depreciation and amortization 696 136 832
Interest expenses 136 - (22) 114
Income tax 34 {24) 10
Total segment assets 20128 2086 22214
Total segment liabilities 10 229 825 11054
2017 Production of Production of
knitted articles _ working clothes Eliminations Total
External sales 22671 3172 - 25 843
Internal sales 950 - (950) R
Total revenue 23 621 3172 (950) 25 843
Gross profit 4320 749 - 5 069
EBITDA 1006 464 . 1 470
Profit 19 282 - 301
Depreciation and amortization 659 166 - 825
Interest expenses 137 - {39) 88
income tax 19 52 - 71
Total segment assets 15 545 1999 - 17 544
Total segment liabilities 9143 975 - 10 118
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5. Segment information {con’t)
__2018 o
EBITDA 2032 1470
Depreciation and amortization {832) (825)
Operating profit 1200 645
Interest expenses (114) (98)
Other financial cost, net 65 {175}
Profit for the year before income tax 1151 72

The measurement and recognition policies used for preparation of management's reports are the same as those used in these financial
statements.

Company's revenues based on activity:

208 2017
Sales of gaoods ordered 22133 17 280
Company brands (About, Utena) 3812 3525
Sales of services 434 186
Other sales 592 1 565

26 971 22 556

The Group's and the Company's revenue from the main custorners in 2018, and 2017 was as follows:

Group Company
Customer Region Percentage of total sales Percentage of total
(%) sales (%)
2018 207 2018 2017
Customer 1 Western Europe 1 1 13 13
Customer 2 Western Europe 7 8 8 9

Revenue from these customers is attributed to production of knitted articles sagment.
The table below summarizes the Group's and the Company’s revenues geographically:

2018 %ﬁﬁl; fuﬂ: Scandinavia (Swe-
tria S\:vifzer- den, Norway, Den- Lithuanta Other markets Total
land) mark, Finland)
13618 8 250 5752 2837 30457
Sales of the Group
12 798 7893 4 425 1855 26 971
Sales of the Company
2017 E)::\ﬁ;l fue;‘: Scandinavia (Swe-
tria S\:vvi zer- den, Norway, Den- Lithuania Other markets Total
land) mark, Finland)
Sales of the Group 10 925 6876 5515 2727 25843
Sales of the Company 8720 6273 4007 2 556 22 556

The majority of the Group’s sales (24.6 %) were performed to DACH customers (42 % in 2017}. In 2018, 23,6 % of total sales
was rendered to Scandinavian customers (26 % in 2017).
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6. Intangible assets

The Group’s assets (except for the assets of subsidiary PAT MTF Mrija located in the Republic of Ukraine} are located
in the Republic of Lithuania. The carrying amount of property, plant and eguipment located in Ukraine was EUR 305

thousand as at 31 Decamber 2018 (EUR 322 thousand as at 31 December 2017).

Cost:

Balance as at 31 December 2018
Additions

Disposals and write-offs

Foreign currency cenversion differences
Balance as at 31 December 2017
Additions

impairment

Foreign currency conversion differences
Balance as at 31 December 2018

Amortization and impairment:
Balance as at 31 December 2018
Amortisation for the reporting year

) Disposals and write-offs
Foraign currency conversion differences
Balance as at 31 December 2017
Amortisation for the reporting year
Disposals and write-offs
Foreign currency conversion differences
Balance as at 31 December 2018

Net book value as at 31 December 2016
Net hook value as at 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 31 December 2018

Group Company
Goodwill re- Goodwill re- Other in- : .
lated to PAT latedto  tangible  Total  Otorinfangk
MTF Mrija  Satrija AB assets
217 441 1121 1779 970
- - 29 29 29
- - (125) (125) (125}
{33) - - (33) -
184 441 1025 1650 874
223 223 223
{195) - - {195) -
11 - - 11 -
- 441 1248 1689 1087
- 37 998 1035 895
- - 78 78 35
- - (124) (124) (124)
- 37 052 98¢ 8Os
45 45 42
- 37 997 1034 848
217 404 123 744 76
184 404 73 661 68
- 404 251 655 249

The Company and the Group do not have internally generated intangible assets. Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets are recognised in general and administrative expenses in the statement of comprehansive income (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2018 acquisition cost of fully depreciated but still in use assets amounted to EUR 790 thousand and
EUR 788 thousand, respectively (as at 31 December 2017, EUR 766 thousand and EUR 764 thousand).

Based on the impairment tests performed, recognised on the goodwill arising from investment in PAT MTF Mrija and Satrija
AB, an impairment of EUR 195 thousand was recognised and this amount was accounted for in the statement of comprehensive
income under general and administrative expenses.
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7. Property, plant and equipment

Vehicles
and other
property, Construc-
Bulld- Struc- plant and tion in
Group Land ings tures equipment progress Total
Cost or revalued amount:
Balance as at 31 December 2016 4 4 493 160 20 916 214 25 787
Additions - 142 9 583 86 820
Reclassification - - 152 61 (213) -
Lisposals and write-offs - - - (722) - (722)
Foreign currency conversion differences - {1485) (8) (66) - (219)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 4 4 490 313 20772 87 25 666
Additions - 34 507 290 831
Revaluation reserve 2629 - - - 2629
Reclassification - 21 166 (2186) (29)
Disposals and write-offs - - (201} - (201)
Foreign currency conversion differences - 37 3 29 - B9
Balance as at 31 December 2018 4 7211 316 21273 161 28 965
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 31 December 2016 - 154 143 18 431 - 18 728
Depreciation for the year - 136 9 599 744
Disposals and write-offs - - - (708} - (708)
Foreign currency conversicn differences - (34 (8) (60} - (90}
Balance as at 31 December 2017 - 256 146 18 272 - 18 674
Charge for the year - 72 13 629 714
Charge for the year revaluation raserve - 85 - - - 85
Disposals and write-offs - - - (197) - (197}
Foreign currency conversion differences - 9 3 23 - 35
Impairment {40) - 20 - 20y
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - 382 162 18 747 - 19 291
Impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2016 - 13 - - - 13
Balance as at 31 December 2017 - 13 - - - 13
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - 13 - - - 13
Net book value as at 31 December 2016 4 4326 17 2485 214 7046
Net book value as at 31 December 2017 4 4221 167 2 500 87 6979
Net book value as at 31 December 2018 4 6 816 154 2528 161 9 661

The Group property (except for the property of subsidiary MTF Mrija PAT, which is located in Ukraine) is in the Republic of Lithu-
ania. Non — current assets, which is located in Ukraine, recognized value as at 31 December 2018 was EUR 2 491 thousand (31
December 2017 was EUR 723 thousand}).
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7. Property, plant and equipment {cont'd)

Company

Cost or revalued amount:
Balance as at 31 December 2016
Additions

Disposals and write-cffs
Reclassificaticn

Balance as at 31 December 2017
Additions

Revaluation reserve
Reclassification

Disposals and write-offs

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as at 31 December 2018
Charge for the year

Disposais and write-cffs

Balance as at 31 December 2017
Charge for the year

Charge for the year revaluation reserve
Disposals and write-offs

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Impairment:

Balance as at 31 December 2016
Balance as at 31 December 2017
Balance as at 31 December 2018

Net book value as at 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 31 December 2018

Vehicles Con-

and other struc-

property, tion in

Build- Struc- plant and pro-
Land ings tures equipment gress Total
4 3283 117 18 673 212 22189
- 60 9 423 72 564
- - - (653) - (653)
- - 152 61 {213) -
4 3343 278 18 404 7 22 100
- 20 - 332 289 641
750 - - - 750
- - - {195) - (195}
- 21 - 166 {200) (13)
4 4134 278 18 707 160 23 283
- 188 115 16 498 - 16 801
- 74 8 500 - 582
- - - (638) - (638)
- 262 123 16 360 - 16 746
- 34 11 498 - 543
- 51 - - - 51
- - - (195) - (195)
- 347 134 16 663 = 17 144
- 9 - - - 9
- 9 - - - 9
- 9 - - - 9
4 3086 2 2075 212 5379
4 3072 155 2044 71 5 346
4 3778 144 2044 160 6130
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7. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Allocation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property amortisation and depreciation is dis-
clesed in the table below.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cost of sales (Note 19) 671 632 493 477
General and administrative expenses (Note 20) 158 180 138 140
Other expenses 3 3 3 3
Total 832 825 634 620

Property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company with the acquisition cost of EUR 14 079 thousand and EUR 11
685 thousand, respectively, were fully depreciated as at 31 December 2018 (as at 3% December 2017 EUR 12 451 thousand
and EUR 10 526 thousand, respectively).

Property, plant and equipment and inventories of the Company with the net book value of EUR 7 724 thousand as at 31 De-
cember 2018 was pledged to the banks as a collateral for the borrowings {Note 18). (As at 31 December 2017 property, plant
and equipment of the Group and the Company the net book value of these items was EUR 7 724 thousand).

If buildings were measured using the cost method, the carrying amounts of buildings would be as follows:

Group Company
31 December 2018 31 December 2018
Cost 3576 1871
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (2 083) (1017}
Net carrying amount 1493 854
Group Company
31 December 2017 31 December 2017
Cost 3542 1851
Accumuiated depreciation and impairment (1977) (983)
Net carrying amount 1 565 868

The revalued buildings consist of warehouses, factories, shop, administration buildings, etc. Management determined that
these constitute one class of asset under IFRS 13, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property.

Fair value of the properties was determined by using the market prices method. This means that valuations performed by the
valuer are based on active market prices for comparable properties adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific property. As at the date of the last revaluation (October and November 2018) the properties’ fair values were
based on valuations performed by accredited independent valuers UAB Centro kubas (Lithuania) and certified valuer Aleksandr
Tidir (Ukraine). The value of the Group's and the Company's assets is based on third level of fair value hierarchy.
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7. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Significant directly or indirectly observable valuation inputs:

Group Company
Price per square meter (EUR) Average price Average price
Administration buildings 96-125 96-125
Manufacturing and warehouse buildings 96-125 96-125
Shop premises 178-475 178-475

Significant increases {(decreases) in estimated price per square metre alone would result in a significantly higher
(lower) fair value

Revaluation Impact on Fixed Assets as at 31 December 2018:

Group Company

Net book value of the building as at 31 December 2017 4991 3072

Net book value of huildings revaluated amount as at 31 December

2017 2377 1991
Net book value of huldings acqusition cost as at 31 December 2017

1844 1081
.t. . HPH H
Positive impact of buildings revaluation 2629 750
isitions of buildi

Acquisit of buildings 55 41
Effect of exchange rate 68 -

Buildings acquisition cost depreciation charges for the year
(72) (34)

Buildings revaluation depreciation charges for the year (5) (51)
Net book value of buildings revaluated amount as at 31 December
2018 4961 2690

k i 1D 2018
Net book value of acqusition cost model as at 31 December 20 1855 1 008

Net book value of the building as at 31 December 2018
6 81 3778
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8. Investment property

Group Company
Cost:
Balance as at 31 December 2018 184 184
Balance as at 31 December 2017 184 184
Balance as at 31 December 2018 163 163
Accumulated depreciation: 75 75
Balance as at 31 December 2016 3 3
Charge for the year 78 78
Balance as at 31 December 2017 3 3
Charge for the year (8) (8}
Balance as at 31 December 2018 73 73
Impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 - -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - -
Net book value as at 31 December 2016 109 109
Net book value as at 31 December 2017 106 106
Net book value as at 31 December 2018 90 90

Rental income and related costs have been disclosed in Note 21.
Investment property of the Company and the Group is comprised of buildings rented o a third party.

Fair value of the properties was determined by using the market prices method. This means that valuations performed by the
valuer are based on active market prices for comparable properties adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific property. As at the date of the last revaluation {October 2018) the properties’ fair values were based on valua-
tions performed by accredited independent valuers UAB Centro klubas (Lithuania) and certified valuer Aleksandr Tidir
(Ukraine).

The Group’s and the Company's investment property fair value was estimated based on the leve! 3 of fair value hierarchy
{Note 3.3).

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Net book value of investment property a0 108 90 106
Fair value of investment property 162 258 162 258
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8. Investment property (cont'd)

Future rental income of investment property

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Within 1 year 3 3 3 3
After 1 year but not later than . . . -
5 years
3 3 3 3

No material contractual commitments to purchase, construct, develop, repair of increase the investment property existed at

the year-end.

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company's investments in subsidiaries were as follows as at 31 December:

Cost of Investments:
Balance as at 1 January
Acquisitions

Batance as at 31 December

Impairment:
Balance as at 1 January

Impairment
Balance as at 31 December

Carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December

As describad in Note 4, the investment into the subsidiary PAT MTF Mrija Is Impaired to zero.

10 Inventories

Raw materials
Production in progress
Finished goods
Goods for resale

Write-down to net realisable value:

Opening balance
Change
Closing balance

2018 2017

3745 3694

- 51

3745 3745

2195 2195

2185 2195

1 550 1 550

Group Company

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
3243 2 652 3240 2286
1535 2 480 1161 2451
1885 2489 1848 2480
58 47 - -
6721 7 648 6 249 7197
(795} {650) (471} (326)
(99) {145) (100) (148)
{894) (795) {571} @
5827 6853 5678 6726
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10 Inventories (cont'd)

The acquisition cost of the Group’s and the Company’s inventories accounted for at net realizable value as at 31 Decem-
ber 2018 amounted tc EUR 1 096 thousand and EUR 732 thousand, respectively (as at 31 December 2017, EUR 1 006 thou-
sand and EUR 646 thousand, respectively). Changes in impairment allowance for inventories during 2018 and 2017 were
recorded within the Group’s and the Company’s general and administrative expenses (Note 20).

The Group does not account for third-party inventories received for processing and stored in the Group's warehouse premises
in the statement of financial positicn. The unaudited vaiue of such inventories owned by third parties was EUR 3 233 thousand
as at 31 Dacember 2018 (EUR 3 200 thousand as at 31 December 2017). The Company does not hold third-party inventories.

11 Trade receivables, contract assets and accrued revenue

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Trade receivables, gross 2816 1908 2 251 1611
Allowance: (193) (115) (166} (94)
Opening balance (4) (78} 4 (72)
Written off - - - -
Closing balance (197) {193} (170) (166)
2419 1715 2081 1445

Changes in allowance for doubtful trade receivables during 2018 and 2017 were recorded within the Group’s and the Com-
pany's general and administrative expenses (Note 20}

For trade receivables ageing see Note 3.1

As at 31 Decemer 2018, contract assets of the Company and the Group comprised of accrued revenue of, respectively,
EUR 2 328 thousand and EUR 2 418 thousand, it mainly reflects the earned ordered article sewing service income that had no
invoices issued at the year-end. The whole amount is not past due maturity and impairment has not been accounted for.

As at 31 December 2017, accrued revenue and other receivables of the group generally consisted of accrued revenue of EUR
2 758 thousand (equal to contract asset amount as at 1 January 2018). As at 31 December 2017 accrued revenue was ac-
counted under other current assets accounts.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 , the Group and the Company did not have amounts past due.

12 Other current assets

Group : Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Other current assets

Taxes receivable, except for prepaid in-

come tax 43 245 33 228
Prepayments 220 92 172 81
Deferred expenses 76 165 72 61
Total other current assets 339 502 277 370
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13 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash on hand 4 5 3 5
Cash at bank 655 594 73 124
Cash equivalents 44 76 44 L)
703 675 120 205

As at 31 December 2018 cash equivalents stands for restricted cash that is used tc secure payments to suppliers. Such re-
strictions are short-term {up to 3 months). The Company's and Group's management has evaluated that IFRS 9 did not made
any impact, as cash is hold in low risk banks.

14 Share capital

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the share capital comprised of 9 503 000 ordinary registered shares with nominal value
of EUR 0.29 each.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all shares were fully paid.

The subsidiaries did not hold any shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The Company did not hold its
own shares as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

15 Other reserves

Legal reserve

A legal resarve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than 5 % of distributable
profit of the Company calculated according to the Lithuanian Company's law, are compulsory until the reserve reaches 10 %
of the share capital. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the legal reserve is fully formed by the Company. The iegal reserve
cannot be distributed as dividends but can be used to cover accurnulated losses.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve reflects the result of the revaluation (net of deferred tax) of the property, plant and equipment.

Gruop Company
Net book value of buildings revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2017 3107 1708
Positive impact of buildings revaluation
2629 750
Effect of exchange rate
877) -
Related deffered tax liability
(435) (112)
Nen- controlling intrest
{13) -
Net book value of buildings revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2018
4411 2 47
Building revaluation depreciation charges for the year
71 “4)
Net book value of buildings revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2018 4340 2103

Reserve for acquisition of own shares

According to the decision of the shareholders of Satrija AB, the reserve for acquisition of own shares amounted to EUR 100
thousand (including non-controlling interest).

Foreign currency conversion reserve

The foreign currency conversion reserve represents conversion differences arising on consclidation of financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries {Note 2.15}.

61



UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB, company code 183709468, J. Basanavilaus st. 122, Utena, Lithuania
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

15 Other reserves (cont'd)

As at 31 December 2018, foreign currency conversion impact on consolidated financial statements amounted to EUR 799
thousand {including non-confrolliing interest).

Derivative instrument reserve

The Company’s loan with Lumior AB is with variable interest rate that is linked to EURIBOR (Note 16). On 26 November 2014,
the Company signed interest rate swap contract with Luminor AB in order to avoid interest rate fluctuations. The agreement is
valid until 25 November 2019. The fair value of interest rate swap contract used for interest rate risk hedging was EUR 13
thousand as of 31 December 2018 and was accounted under Group's/Company's current liabilities (as at 31 December 2017
was EUR 29 thousand accounted under non-current (EUR 10 thousand) and current (EUR 19 thousand) llabilities).

16 Borrowings

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 Decembel 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Current

Curren"r porticn of non-current bank 2 874 860 0871 860
borrowings

Borrowings from subsidiaries - - 1 200
Other current liabilities 1239 - 1238 -

Non-current

Borrowings from subsidiaries - - 1200 1061
Long-term bank borrowings 379 2836 379 2 836
Total borrowings 4 489 3 696 5 690 4 957

The Company's borrowings from subsidiaries consist of the loan granted by subsidiary Satrija AB, amounting to EUR 1200
thousand with maturity as at 26 November 2021 and variable interest rate 12 month EURIBOR+1.9 %.

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the bank horrowings were secured by property, plant and equipment and inventory (Note
7 and 10}.

The carrying amounts of borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
31 Decem-
31 December 31 December 31 December ber
2018 2017 2018 2017
EUR 4 4895 3696 5690 4957
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16 Borrowings {con’t)

The weighted average interest rates (%) were as follows:

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Long-term borrowings from . . 1.90 1.90
subsidiaries ) ;
Long-term bank borrowings 1,90 1,57 1,80 1,57

The Group’s and the Company’s borrowings fair value was estimated based on the level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

The exposure of the borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual re-pricing dates at the statements of financial
position dates are as follows:

Group Company
Interest changes
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Every 3 months 4 489 3696 4 489 3686
Every 12 months - - 1201 1261
4 489 3696 5 690 4 957

On 12 April 2018, an agreement with AB Luminor bank was signed for increase of credit line limit fo EUR 1 300 thousand
(additionally receiving EUR 800 thousand share of credit limit with maturity term ending on 31 March 2018). As of 31 Decem-
ber 2018, the unused credit limit share was EUR &1 thousand.

On 26 April 2018, an agreement with AB Luminor bank was signed for long-term credit amount increase to EUR 4 562 thou-
sand (additionally receiving EUR 1 050 thousand amount of credit with maturity term ending 25 November 2019)

interest rate was set based on market interest rate, therefore, according to the management, accounting value agreed with
their fair value.

As at 28 March 2019, the Company has signed a long-term credit agreement and an overdraft agreement with OP Corpo-
rate Bank plc Lithuania. The main purpose of these loans are to refinance the Company's liabilities to AB Luminor bank {27
note).

Operating lease commitments — the Group and the Company as a lessee

The Group and the Company has entered into operating leases on certain vehicles with Luminor AB and Swedbank Lizingas
UAB, with lease terms of up to 5 years.

Future minimum rentals payable under cperating leases and premises lease are as follows:

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Within 1 year 76 63 76 63
After 1 year but not more than
5 years 106 196 108 186
182 259 182 249
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17 Provisions for employee benefits

Group Company

Balance as at 31 December 2016 380 335
Benefits earnad 88 78
Interest costs - -
Actuarial (gain) loss (40} (40)
Reduction of costs due to terminated job coniracts {34) (34)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 394 339
Benefits earned 84 66
Interest costs 4 4
Actuarial (gain) loss (68) (¥7)
Reduction of costs due to cancelled job contracts (65) (64)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 329 268
Group Company

Long-ferm provisions for employee benefits as at 31 December 2018 240 188
Shott-term provisions for employee benefits as at 31 December 2018 89 80
Long-term provisions for employee benefits as at 31 December 2017 308 260
Short-term provisions for employee benefits as at 31 December 2017 85 79

Provisions for pension and jubilee benefits represent amounts calculated according to the collective agreements, which are in
force in the Group and the Company. In the Company and its subsidiary Satrija AB, each employee is entitled to a jubilee
benefit and a 2-month salary payment when leaving the job at or after the beginning of pension period.

In 2018, provisions were calculated with the discount rate of 1.75 % and employee turnover rate of 13.19 % (in 2017, 1.52 %

and 9.74 %, respectively).

31 Decemher 2018

Group Company
Change in as- Positive Negative Positive Negative
sumption changesin  changes in changes inas- changesin
assumption  assumption sumption assumption
Discount rate 0.5 % Decreased Increased by Decreased by Increased by
by 2.81% 278 % 237 % 252 %
Salary growth rate 0.5 % Increased by Decreased by  Increased by Decreased by
2.75% 261% 2.50% 2.38%
31 December 2017
Group Company
Change in as- Positive Negative Positive Negative
sumption changesin  changesin changes inas- changesin
assumption assumption sumption assumption
Discount rate 0.5% Decreased increased by Decreased by Increased by
by 3.43% 367% 3.28% 3.62%
Salary growth rate 0.5 % Increased by Decreased by  [ncreased by Decreased by
3.63% 342% 3.49% 3.28%
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18 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembel
2018 2017 2018 2017
Accrual for vacation reserve 1235 1043 778 655
Wages, salaries and social security 634 679 553 528
Amaounts payable for services and non-cur-
rent assets 368 329 367 319
Taxes payable (except for income tax) 204 203 176 146
Prepayments received® - 154 - 136
Provisions far employee benefits 89 85 81 79
Other liabilities 248 257 4 2
2778 2750 1 996 1866
*As of 2018 prepayments received was accounted under contract liabilities
19 Cost of sales
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Materials 98603 7874 9 406 7 654
Wages, salarigs and social security g 680 8 250 6973 5999
Other additional expenses 3 666 2 583 4148 3154
Depreciation and amortization {Notes 6, 7
and 8) 671 593 493 437
Cost of materials sold 981 1474 977 1462
24 601 20774 21997 18 606
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20 Sales, general and administrative expenses

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Sales expenses
Wages, salaries and soclal security 747 728 671 658
Advertising and marketing costs 413 505 408 500
Intermediation 313 275 309 272
Transportation expenses 249 204 247 204
Maintenance costs of retail cutlets 90 112 79 a3
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 6, 7
and 8) 80 52 71 52
Other sales expenses 136 134 131 128
Total sales expenses 2037 2010 1916 1908
General and administrative expenses
Wages salaries and social security 1048 910 770 836
Communication and consulting services® 389 341 319 278
Travel expenses 148 150 105 285
6I?rr;zél)rge)(:latlon and amortization (Notes 8, 7 77 137 68 88
Security 119 113 59 56
Vehicles expicitation expenses 62 80 52 73
Services of financial institutions 64 54 58 47
Premises’ exploitation expenses 47 40 45 34
Travel expenses 17 25 12 19
Representational expenses 35 27 32 25
Allowance and write-off (reversal) 289 145 138 145
Other 444 495 275 170

2739 2527 1933 1 856

4776 4 537 3 849 3764

*|n 2018 fee for financial statements audit was EUR 23 thousand, other non-audit related services provided by independent
auditors {translation services) amounted to EUR 1 thousand. For year 2017 financial statements audit fee was EUR 15 thou-
sand, other non-audit related services provided by independent auditors (translation services) amounted to EUR 1 thousand.

21 Other income and expenses

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Gain from disposal of non-current as-

sets - 13 - 11
Rent income 18 18 14 15
Other income 120 89 38 18
Other income 138 120 52 44
Loss from disposal of non-current as-

sets - - -
Rent expenses (11) (5) {11} (4}
Other expenses @ (2) - -
Other expenses {18) {7)_ {11} 4)
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22 Financial costs, net

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
Dividends received - - 10 2002
Foreign exchange gain 225 115 38 29
Interest income - - eo 60
Other financial Income - 1 - 11
income from financing activities 225 116 108 2192
Interest expenses (118) (98} (136) (137)
Foreign exchange loss (159) (281) (32) (32)
Impairment of loans granted - - (500) -
Financial activities’ expenses {274} (389) (668) (169)

23 Income tax
Income tax expenses comprised as follows:
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Current tax ' (23) (78) (43) {14}
Change in deferred tax 13 7 " B -
Income tax (expenses) recognised in the (10) 71) (35) (14)

statement of comprehensive income

Recongiliation of the reported ameunt of income tax expenses for the year to the amount of income tax that would be calcu-
lated applying the statutory income tax rate {o profit before tax:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Profit (lesses) before tax 1151 a72 606 2 249
Income tax income (expense) at a rate of 15% (173) (58) (81) {337)
Effeqt of different tax rates applicable to subsidiary in 18 )

Ukraine 18 -
Change in valuation allowances for deferred tax asset 41 (1) - -
Non-taxable income - - - 314
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 104 (32) 56 9
Income tax income (expenses) reported in the ’

statement of comprehensive income (10) (71) (35) {14)

In 2018, deferred income tax asset and liability related to the entities operating in Lithuania were estimated using a tax rate of
15 % {15 % in 2017,). Deferred income tax asset and liability relating to entity operat-ing in Ukraine were estimated using a
tax rate of 18 % (18 %in 2017).

The movement in the Group’s and the Company's deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities accounts (prior to and after
offsetting the balances) during the period was as follows:
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23. Income tax (cont’d)

Group

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carried ferward
Inventories

Receivables

Impairment of preperty, plant and equipment

Provisions for employee benefits
Goodwill

Investment assets
Accrued charges

Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance

Less: valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets, net
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment revaluation

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax, net

Group

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carried forward
Inventories
Receivables

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Provisions for employee benefits
Goodwill

Investment assets
Accrued charges

Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance

Less: valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets, net
Deferred tax liahilities

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment revaluation

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax, net

Recognised
As at31 Recognised in other As at 31
Decem- in profit comprehen- December
ber 2017 (loss) sive income 2018
6 3 (3) 6
76 17 - 03
15 (10} - 5
1 - - 1
58 (10) - 48
7 (4) 3
- 36 - 36
77 (13) - 64
240 16 (3} 256
{41 3) (44)
199 16 (3) 212
(135} 32 - {103)
(3913 - (438) (827)
(526) 32 (436) (830}
(327) 48 (439} (718)
Recognised .
: : Recognised
As at 31 in profit (loss) in othercom-  As at 31
December prehensive Decem-
2018 income ber 2017
92 (83) (3) 6
54 22 - 76
3 12 - 15
1 - - 1
56 2 - 58
11 {4 - 7
65 12 - 77
282 (39 (3) 240
40) ) - {41)
242 (40) (3) {199)
{174) 39 - (135)
(GaIa] 8 18 {391}
(591 47 18 (526)
{349} 7 15 (327}
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23. Income tax (cont’d)

Recognised in the statement of financial position*: As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017

Deferred income tax asset 104 63
Deferred income tax liabilities 822 390

*Deferred income tax asset and liabilities are netted as much as they are related to the tax institution and with the condition
that tax institution does not perform such coverings.

Recognised
Company Recognised in other com-
As at 31 December in profit prehensive As at 31 De-
2017 {loss) income cember 2018
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward - - - -
Inventories 71 15 - 86
Impairment of frade receivables 1 (11) - -
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 1 - - 1
Provisicns for employee benefits 51 {11} - 40
Accrued expenses 23 {21) - 2
Deferred tax assets before valuation
allowance 157 (28) " 129
Less: valuation allowance - - - -
Deferred tax assets, net 157 (28} - 129
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (128) 28 - (100)
Property, plant and equipment revalua-
tion (299} - {104) {403)
Ceferred tax liabilities (427} 28 (104} (503)
Deferred tax, net (270) - (104) (374)
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23. Income tax (cont'd)

Recognised in

Company As at 31 Decem-  Recognised in other compre- As at 31 De-
ber 2016 profit (loss) hensive income  cember 2017
Deferred tax assets - - -
Tax loss carry forward 85 (85) - -
Inventories 49 22 - 71
Impairment of {rade receivables - i1 - 1M
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 1 - - 1
Provisions for employee benefits 50 1 - 51
Accrued expenses 18 5 - 23
Deferred tax assets before vaiuation
allowance 203 (46) 3 157
Less: valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets, net
203 (46} - 157

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreaciation of property, plant and
equipment (163) 35 - {128}
Property, plant and eguipment revalua-
tion (310) 11 - (299)
Deferred tax liabilities

473) 46 - (427)
Deferred tax, net (270} - - (270)

As at 31 December 2018 the Group's company PAT MTF Mrija had tax losses amounting to EUR 3 464 thousand (EUR 3 373
theusand in 2017) for which no deferred tax assets were recognised due to uncertainties related to their realisation. These tax
losses may be carried forward for an unlimited term.

The Company did not recognised deferred tax asset from investment incentive amounting to EUR 24,7 thousand as at 31

December 2018 (EUR 122 thousand as at 31 December 2017}, due te uncertainties related to their realization. This investment
incentive may be carried forward till 2023,

24 Profit per share

Profit per share reflect the Group's net profit, divided by the number of shares. The Company has no dilutive instruments,
therefore basic and dilutive earnings per share are equal. Calculation of the profit per share is presented below:

Group
2018 2017
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group 1107 274
\;‘ﬁl)ghted average number of shares in issue (thou- 9503 9503
Basic/dilutive earnings per shars (in EUR}) 012 0,03
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26 Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influ-
ence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The related parties of the Group are as follows:

Related party Description of relation

A. Martinkevigius Ultimate centrolling individual

UAB Koncernas SBA Ultimate parent company, exercising controi through majority of Board members
SBA group companies UAB Koncernas SBA subsidiaries

Company’s management Directors, Board members and their family members

Besides related parties of the Group, subsidiaries of the Company are treated as related parties of the Company.

In the normal course of business, the Company and the Group enter into transactions with their related parties. These
transactions are priced predominantly at market rates. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions are priced at
market or non-market rates, where there is no active market for such transactions. The basis for judgement is pricing
for similar types of transactions with unrelated parties, when such information is known to the Group/Company.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the management of the Group and the Company had 0.002 % of
shares of PAT MTF Mrija.

Less than 100% owned subsidiaries
Financial information of subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests is provided below.

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Country of incorporation and operation: 2018 2017

Gotija, UAB Lietuva - -
Satrija, AB Lietuva 10.22% 10.22%
PAT MTF Mrija Ukraina 1.05% 1.05%

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interest: 2018 2017
Gotija, UAB - -

Satrija, AB 212 216

PAT MTF Mrija {24) {39)
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25 Related party transactions {cont'd)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income for 2018:

Revenue

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Other operating income (expenses)
Financial income {expanses)

Profit before tax

Income fax

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Total comprehensive income
Attributable to non-controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Summarised statement of comprehensive income for 2017:

Revenue

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Other operating income{expenses)
Financial costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Total comprehensive income
Attributable to non-controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
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Gotija, UAB Satrija, AB PAT MTF Mrija

320 3378 710
(214) (2 648) (684)
(76) (517) (208)
- 80 7
- 22 130
30 315 (45)
(4 24 5
26 339 (40)
26 339 {40)

34 -
Satrija,

Gotija, UAB AB PAT MTF Mrija
278 3172 787
(174 {2 401) (611)
(70) (540) (168)

- 83 -

2 38 (702)
36 350 {694)
6 (64) .
30 206 (694)
30 296 (694)
5 29 7
- 114 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{(All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

25 Related party transactions (cont’d)

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018:

Gotija, UAB Satrija, AB PAT MTF Mrija

Inventeries, cash at hand and cash at bank (current assets) 85 1088 69
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current
i . - 2193 2473
financial assets (non-current assets)
Trade and other payables {(current) (21) {1202) (3 480)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and deferred

R - - {1385}
tax liabilities (non-current)
Total eqjuity 64 2079 {2 323)
Aftributable to:
Parent company 64 1867 (2 289)
Non-controlling interest - 212 {24)

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017:

Gotija, UAB Satrija, AB PAT MTF Mrija

Inventories, cash at hand and cash at bank (current assets) 86 1045 75
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current

P rty P quip - 2003 727
financial assets (non-current assets)
Trade and other payables (current} 21) (877) (3 482)
interest-bearing loans and borrowings and deferred

— - (49) {1 066)
tax liabilities (non-current)
Total equity 65 2122 (3 748)
Aftributable to:
Parent company 65 1908 (3 707)
Non-controlling interest - 216 (39)
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25 Related party transactions (cont'd)

Related party transactions are disclosed below.

Group Company
Sales of goods and services 2018 2017 2018 2017
Subsidiaries of the Company - - 227 189
SBA group companies 4 12 4 12
Ultimate parent company - 2 - 2
4 14 231 203
Group Company
Interest income 2018 2017 2018 2017
Subsidiaries of the Company - - 60 60
- - 60 60
Group Company
Interest expenses 2018 2017 2018 2017
Subsidiaries of the Company - - 28 39
- - 28 39
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Purchases of goods and services -
Subsidiaries of the Company - - 750 934
Ultimate parent company 212 215 212 215
Other related parties 13 11 13 11
' 225 226 975 1160
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Dividend income
Subsidiaries of the Company - - 10 2083
- - 10 2093
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26 Related party transactions (cont’d)

Amounts receivable (including prepayments and loans)
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries, gross* - -
Impairment allowances - -
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries, net - -
Prepayments to subsidiaries - -
Loans granted including interest recsivables from sub-

sidiaries, gross™

Impairment allowances - -
Loans granted including interest receivables from
subsidiaries, net

Group Company
31 Decem- 31 De- 31 Decem- 31 December
ber 2018 cember ber 2017
2017 2018
2 256 2258
{1 958) (1958)
298 298
753 642
- - 1685 1625
(928) (428)
- . 1 490 1839
- - 1788 2137

*As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, accounts receivable consisted only of accounts receivable from PAT MTF Mrija.

=*Ag at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amount stands for loan granted to (including interest receivables) PAT MTF

Mrija with fixed annual interest rate of 8 %.

As at 31 December 2018 not past do receivables and loans granted was EUR 1 495 thousand, a portion of receivable
payments from subsidiaries EUR 5 thousand is more than 30 days past due, another portion of receivabie payments from
subsidiaries EUR 15 thousand is 31-120 days past due. The rest of the payments EUR 273 thousand are more than 120
days past due. As at 31 December 2017 not past do receivables and loens granted was EUR 1 830 thousand, a portion
of receivable payments from subsidiaries EUR 5 thousand is more than 30 days past due, anather portion of receivable
payments from subsidiaries EUR 16 thousand is 31-120 days past due. The rest of the payments EUR 286 thousand are

more than 120 days past due.

Interast rates set for loans granted to related parties by the Company are based on the market interest rates set for similar
borrowings, therefore, the carrying amount of loans granted to related parties is approximately equal to their fair value.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and non-current payables
Subsidiaries of the Company:
Borrowings - - 1201 1261
Other payables - - 21 4
SBA group companies:
Other related parties 3 25 3 3
Ultimate parent company 33 214 33 214

36 239 1258 1482
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25 Related party transactions {cont’d)

On 1 April 2017, the Company signed a zero-balance service agreement (a shared use account) with Luminor AB and Satrija
AB. As at 31 December 2018, the liability under this agreement amounted to EUR 1 thousand {as at December 2017, EUR
200 thousand}

Payables to or receivables from related parties have no interest, Maturities of payable or receivable offsetting between related
parties are from 15 to 30 days, except for dividends and borrowings that are paid off or borrowings paid under legal or contrac-
fual requirements.

Balances at the year-end have no collaterals and all transactions are carried out in cash unles otherwise agreed. There are no
guarantees granted for receivables from or payables to related parties.

In 2018, the amount of loan from subsidiary Satrija AB increased to EUR 1 200 thousand and as at 31 December 2017 it was
EUR 1 061 thousand.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Key management compensation including social security
costs
Remuneration to management 657 650 434 431
Defined benefit and jubilee payments to managemsnt ‘ 8 5 3 )
663 655 437 433

Management includes general director, functional directors and chief accountant.

In 2018, and 2017, the management of the Group and the Company did not receive any loans, guarantees, any other payments
or property transfers were not made or accrued. Remuneration to management comprise base salary and related social security
costs.

No guarantees were issued on behalf of related parties as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

26 Other commitments

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group and the Company had no material commitments for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets.

Frem 2003 to 2018, the State Tax Inspectorate did not perform a full tax assessment of the Company and the Group (performed
a partial Company's tax assessment in 2017). According to the laws, State Tax Inspectorate can at any time assess the Com-
pany's accounting archive and registers within 5 years before the reporting taxable period and can calculate additional taxes
and sanctions. Analogicaily similar risk exists due to the existance of entity PAT MTF Mrija registered in Ukraine as the local
state tax autherity has not yet performed a full tax inspection.

The Company’s management is not aware of any circumstances that would cause the company any additional material tax
liabilities.

27 Subsequent sheet events

As at 28 March 2019, the Company has signed a long-term credit agreement and an overdraft agreement with OP Corporate
Bank plc Lithuania. The main purpose of these loans of EUR 5 000 thousand is to refinance the Company's liabilities to AB

Luminor bank. The amount of the long-term credit is EUR 3 400 thousand with the maturity term effective until 20 February
2024,

There were no other material subsequent events, that could make a significant impact on the financial statements of the
Group and the Company.
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Urends

1. Reporting period covered by the Annual Report

The Annual Report covers the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. All amounts in the Annual Report
presented as at 31 December 2018, unless otherwise stated. Further in this report Utenos Trikotazas AB can be referred

to as the Company or the Issuer.

2. Issuer and its contact data

Company name
Legal and organisation form

Date and place of incorporation

Registration code

Code of the Register of Legal Entities
Authorised share capital

Address

Name of Register of Legal Entities
Telephone

Fax

E-mail

Website

Main activities

Auditors

3. Nature of the Issuer's operations

Utenos TrikotaZas AB

Legal entity, public company

Registered with the Register of Legal Entities of Utena District on 6 St December
1994; reregistered with the Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania on 18 st
September 1998.

B| 98-257

183709468

EUR 2 755 870

J.Basanavi¢iaus g.122, LT-28214, Utena, Lithuania

Registry centras V|

+370 389 51445

+370 389 69358

utenos.trikotazas@ut. It

www. ut.It
Production of knit-wear and textile articles

ERNST&YOUNG BALTIC UAB

Utenos Trikotazas AB operates in the field of textile industry. The Company's principal activity is production of knit-wear

and textile articles.

Utenos trikotazas AB types of activities:

- production of knit-wear and textile articles;

- production of mass-consumption goods which is closely related to principal activities;

- retail and wholesale trade in own production and production of other companies in local and foreign markets;
- rendering of services to natural and legal persons.

Satrija AB activity type:
- sewing of clothes;

MTF Mrija PAT activity type:

- sewing of knitwear;

Gotija UAB activity type:
- retail trade;

4. Company and group companies

The Company and Group companies do not have branches or representative offices.
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5. Agreements with intermediaries of securities’ public turnover

On 25 September 2005, the Issuer concluded a service agreement with the Department of Safe Custody Services of SEB
Vilniaus Bankas AB, address Gedimino pr. 12, LT-01103 Vilnius. Under this agreement the accounting of the Issuer's
securities is handled in Siauliy bankas AB.

On 25 April 2007, the Issuer concluded an agreement with OMX Exchanges Ltd. on the system of service provision,
disclosure and communication of information,

6. Overview of the company's activities

Utenos trikotazas AB Group, the largest textile company in Central and Eastern Europe, grew rapidly in 2018 — sales
increased in all business segments. Revenue growth was driven by newly developed fabrics, orientation towards
sustainable and flexible production practices.

Despite shortage of skilled labor and raising costs of labor putting pressure on our profitability we managed to improve
bottom line results by significantly growing sales and managing our product and customer portfolio.

Long term investments in sustainable production processes, continuous R&D developments of new fabrics and garments
enable us to continuosly acquire new customers in our target markets Scandonavia and DACH (Germany, Austria,
Switzerland).

The sales of own brands — UTENOS and ABOUT — also increased sales. E-shop sales more than doubled last year and
was the most significant growth driver for the brands segment. Retail presence of UTENOS brand at the end of 2018
expanded to 17 branded stores across Lithuania, majority operated by franchizees.

Rapid growth that the company has enjoyed over past few years requires to upgrade and add new technologies to serve
markets. In 2018 the Group actively invested into new technologies and equipment, upgrade of machine control systems
7. Key performance indicators of the Group

UT group sales, profit, price per share for the last § years:

2018 2017 20186 2015 2014
Revenue (EUR000) 30 457 25 843 22 790 18 922 19 766
Profit for the year (loss) (EUR'000) 1141 301 1053 (261) 51
Price per share 0.820 0.950 0.800 0.400 0.609
Trade
Group Company
i 2018 2017 Change, 2018 2017 Change,
Reentis {EUR 260) 12 months 12 months per cent 12 months 12 months per cent
Products manufactured on
demand of other clients 23 267 19 146 21.5 23159 19 031 21.7
Own brands (ABOUT,
UTENQOS) 3812 3525 8.1 3812 3525 8.1
Services of specialized
clothing manufacture 3378 3172 6.5 - - -
30 457 25 843 17.9 26 971 22 556 19.6
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Revenue (EUR '000)

Change,
2018 2017 per cent 2016
Utenos Trikotazas AB 26 971 22 556 19.6 19 622
Satrija AB 3378 3172 6.5 3032
MTF Mrija PAT 710 787 (9.8) 436
Gotija UAB 320 278 15,2 229
Elimination of intercompany transactions (922) (950) (2.9) (529)
30 457 25 843 17.9 22790

Sales by regions

In 2018, Company has sold goods and services of total amount of EUR 27,0 million. Trade volume increased by EUR 4.4
million or by 19,6 per cent as compared to 2017. The Company exported to Western Europe and other countries 83.3 per
cent, whereas sold in Lithuania 16.7 per cent of total production.

In 2018, total sales of goods and services of Utenos Trikotazas AB group (hereinafter “the Group”) amounted to EUR 30,5
million. The Group exported 81,1 per cent, whereas sold in Lithuania 18.9 per cent of total production.

Lithuania

In 2018, the Company sold in Lithuania total amount of EUR 4.5 million of knitwear production. The sales in Lithuania
increased by EUR 0.5 million or 12,5 per cent.

In 2018, the Group sold in Lithuania amounted to EUR 5.8 million of production, the export sales increased by EUR 3,9
million or 21.1 per cent compared to 2017.

Export

In 2018, the Company exports to Western Europe and other regions amounted to EUR 22.5 million, which is more by EUR
2.1 million compared to 2017.

In 2018, the Group's exports to Western Europe and other regions amounted to EUR 24.7 million, which is more by EUR
4.4 million compared to 2017.

Trade by regions is disclosed in Note per financial statements.

Operating figures
Group Company *
2018 2017 20186 2018 2017 2016
Manufactured items, units ‘000 3132 3231 2 861 3008 3099 2700
Average number of employees 997 1061 1025 659 714 679

*. The production is shown in conjunction with the subsidiary's production according to the company's orders.
Production

In 2018, the Company produced 1.5 million knit-wear items. The Company's subcontractors (including subcontractors in
Ukraine) produced 1.5 million knit-wear items or 48.2 per cent of total production volumes. In 2018, Satrija AB produced
118 thousand sewn items. In 2018, MTF Mrija PAT produced 0.8 million items.

Production (units '000)

2018 2017 Change,

per cent
Utenos TrikotaZzas AB 2197 2104 4.4
Satrija AB 118 125 (5.5)
MTF Mrija PAT 817 1002 (18.4)
Gotija UAB - - -
3132 3231 (3.0)
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Financial ratios

Group Company
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Revenue (EUR'000) 30457 25843 22790 26971 22556 19 622
Operating profit (loss) (EUR'000) 1200 645 1417 1166 226 773
Operating profit (loss) margin (per cent) 3.9 2.5 6.2 4.3 1.0 39
EBITDA 2032 1470 2 205 1785 846 1397
EBITDA margin (per cent) 6.7 57 9.7 6.6 3.7 71
Profit (loss) before tax (EUR'000) 1151 372 1220 606 2 249 674
Profit (loss) before tax, margin (per cent ) 3.8 1.4 54 22 10.0 34
Net profit (loss) for the year (EUR'C00) 1141 301 1053 571 2235 569
Net profit (loss) for the year margin (per cent) 3.7 1.2 46 21 9.9 29
Number of shares, (thousand) 9503 9 503 9503 9503 9 503 9503
Relative ratios
Group Company
2018. 2017. 2016. 2018. 2017. 2016.
12.31 12.31 12.31 12.31 12.31 12.31
Return on capital employed ( per cent ) 414 10.9 382 20.7 81.1 206
Return on assets ( per cent ) 5.1 17 6.7 28 12.4 3.7
Return on shareholders’ equity ( per cent ) 10.2 40 14.5 6.1 201 10.6
Debt ratio (per cent ) 498 576 53.4 53.9 57.2 65,1
Debt-to-equity ratio ( per cent ) 99.0 136.1 114.6 116.8 1335 186.4
Liquidity ratio ( per cent) 121.8 148.3 168.4 119.3 150.1 155.5
Equity to assets ratio ( per cent ) 50.2 42 4 46.6 46.1 428 349
Ratios related with the share price
2018 2017 2016
P/E 7.04 32.95 7.49
EPS 0.12 0.03 0.11
EV/EBITDA 5.70 8.22 463
EV/EBIT 9.16 25.70 7.63

Investments

In 2018, the Group's investments in new equipment and new technologies amounted to EUR 1 054 thousand;

In 2018, the Company's investments in new equipment and technologies amounted to EUR 1 040 thousand, including
transactions between Group companies.

In 2018, Satrija AB invested EUR 139 thousand.

In 2018, MTF Mrija PAT invested EUR 21 thousand.
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8. Information about trade in the Issuer’s securities in regulated markets

The Company's shares are listed on the Official List of the National Stock Exchange, as well on the Baltic List of the
Lithuanian, Latvian and Estonian stock market. 9 503 000 of ordinary registered shares have been registered for public
turnover of securities. A nominal value of one share is EUR 0.29.

9. Information regarding the price of shares and their dynamics

Utenos Trikotazas AB share price dynamics, 2016-2018 (EUR):
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Price ratios 2018 2017 2016
Open price, EUR 0.950 0.800 0.400
High price, EUR 1.250 1.500 0.800
Low price, EUR 0.820 0.680 0.351
Last price, EUR 0.820 0.950 0.800
Turnover, units 602 135 134 721 130 110
Turnover, million EUR 0.50 0.14 0.08
Capitalisation, million EUR 7.79 9.03 7.60
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Utenos Trikotazas AB, OMX Baltic Benchmark Gl and OMX Vilnius
Index dynamics, 2016-2018
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Index/ Equity 2018.12.31 2017.12.31 2016.12.31 2018/2017
change, %
—. OMX Baltic Benchmark Gl 873.81 944.09 788.17 (7.44)
OMX Vilnius 616.9 653.29 558.5 (5.57)
~UTRIL 0.820 EUR 0.950 EUR 0.800 EUR (13.38)

10. Dividend policy

The decision on dividends payment for 2018 will be made by the General Meeting of Shareholders, based on the proposal
of the Board.

11. Description of key risks and contingencies of the Company

Risk factors related to the Issuer's operations.
Key risk factors related to operations of Utenos Trikotazas AB include:
s  Qverall economic situation of Lithuania,;
s Foreign currency fluctuations;
« Amendments to laws and legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania;
s Changes in accounting and tax regulations.

Economic factors. The Company's operations depend on government policy and otherpolitical and economical changes

in Lithuania and the World (which affect Lithuania). The Company and the Group use instruments ensuring that production
is sold to reliable customers. The Company’s and the Group's policy focuses on maintaining adequate amount of cash and
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cash equivalents or maintaining funding by keeping adequate credit lines available with the purpose of implementing
commitments provided in the strategic plans.

Utenos trikotazas AB continues to improve the management system according to EN 1SO 9001, EN 1SO 14001, SA 8000
and other relevant requirements.

Social risk factors. The Company focuses on improvement of working conditions, employees training, qualification
development.

Technical and technological risk factors. The condition of the Company's major facilities is good and does not pose any
risk to operations. Utenos Trikotazas AB regularly invests in renovation of facilities and introduction of the latest
technologies.

Ecological risk factors. The Company has implemented environment management system, which complies with
requirements of ISO 14001.. Key environmental strategic objectives include:

- Reduction of environmental pollution through efficient and economical use of raw materials and energy resources;
- Reduction in waste volume, improvement of management of waste and chemical materials, reduction of use of dangerous
chemical substances in the production process.

12. References to and additional explanations of data presented in the financial statements

All financial datas of 2018 and 2017 presented in this Annual Report is calculated based on the financial information
presented in the Group's an the Company's financial statements for the year 2018, prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. These financial statements were audited by the auditor
assigned under established procedure.

13. Main features of the Group of Company's internal control and risk management systems related to the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Utenos Trikotazas Group are prepared in accordance of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. To all Utenos trikotazas AB group companies the same principles of
internal control organisation and accounting are applied. . Per consolidated financial statements, all intercompany
transactions and balances are eliminated.

Internal controls in Utenos Trikotazas AB includes control procedures over processes related to sales and manufacturing
of production, supply, financial reports preparation.

14. Corporate social responsibility

AB Utenos trikotaZas is the largest Lithuanian knitwear producer, whose production cycle covers the whole process - from
the yarn to the finished product and expanding the sales of innovative materials. The goal of the company is to become an
innovative leader in the production of knitwear in Europe and an example of a responsible attitude towards the environment
and public welfare. Implement innovations for high value-added and new products and increase process flexibility and
speed. Maintain a good relationship with existing partners and clients and constantly search for new ones, working flexibly
and adapting to the needs of the client.

AB Utenos trikotaZas in 2017 officially joined the Greenpeace project "Detox". Entity by 2020 year is committed to eliminate
raw materials that could have a negative impact to people or the environment in all stages of the product life, from the start
of production and packaging to wearing, washing, sorting and recycling of the product, thus producing products that are
safe for the consumar without harming the environment and workers. This is guaranteed by the available certificates and
independents auditor audits, after which independent certification bodies issue certificates proving that the production
meets the requirements of international ecological standards.

The Company does not tolerate any forms of corruption and is in favor of honest business and transparent cooperation.

The risk is reduced by internal controls aimed at identifying potential risk factors for corruption. Information about risk is
disclosed in Note 3.1 per financial statements.

Employees of the company are educated about the importance of social claims, and there is a system of complaints and /
or offers in the company that ensures confidentiality and anonymity.

The company complies with the requirements of the legislation in force in the field of environmental protection, labor safety
and other fields.
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The company is actively involved in the worker trade union, which works closely with the management and simultaneously
solves the issues raised by employees.

The Company seeks to continuously improve the conditions of its employees. The employees have the opportunity to
exercise free of charge on the sports club located on the premises of the company, subsidized food at the company's
canteen.

The company's employees participate in external Lean training, aimed not only at managing and optimizing production
processes but also in improving workplaces, encouraging employees to contribute to the improvement of the company's
operations, optimization and facilitation of work.

The Company and Group companies take care of environmental protection by cantrolling the waste generated by the
company and the use of electricity.

The Company has replaced all light bulbs used in industrial premises in energy saving bulbs, thus saving energy
consumption.

Utenos Trikotazas AB in order to implement the development of corporate social responsibility in partnership with business,
social and international partners in 23 May 2008 certified for international social responsibility standard SA 8000 (recertified
on 23 June 2017).

In order to meet the customer's expectations in a timely and qualitative manner, within the Group, the Company registers
and examines the company's internal problems, ascertaining the reasons for the discrepancies and anticipating the actions
to prevent the problem from happening again. In case a claim is received from the client, the claim is registered in the
register, the causes of the discrepancies are identified and the preventive actions are envisaged so that the problem does
not recur and the customer receives feedback.

SA 8000 standard objectives:
» Ensure social welfare of workers and employees;
o Improve social responsibility not only inside the Company, but also encourage subcontractors;
o Demonstrate to the Western partners that Utenos TrikotaZzas AB managers of all levels treat their workers civilized
and the Company had implemented core human rights conventions and directives.

Utenos Trikotazas AB management ensure wages which would satisfiedt the basic needs of personnel and provide
some discretionary income.

Social responsibility (SA 8000) standard demands:

e  The work for children under 16 years must not be practiced;

« Forced labour, verbal abuse or physical punishment must be avoided; working conditions must be healthy and
safe:

« Discrimination based on nationality, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, membership in organizations or political
affiliation, age or disability must be prevented; employing, dismissing or retiring must not become a cause to work
successfully, feel happy and needed.

e Equal pay for equal work and same opportunities for learning and promotions for men and women;

o People should work under well-defined working time schedules (work start, work end, lunch break and rest
breaks); overtime work or work on rest days or holidays must be provided in the collective agreement or
harmonized with workers' representatives — Council of Trade Unions.

« Payment and additions for work done must be clear to employees and all this must be harmonized in the collective
agreement or with workers' representatives — Council of Trade Unions.

The Company and the Group companies comply with the requirements of SA 8000: do not use child labor, provide
adequate conditions for the protection of occupational safety and health of workers, guarantee the freedom of workers'

organizations, prohibit any discrimination against employees, do not apply and does not encourage physical disciplinary
measures, forced labor, adhere to working time regulations, correctly remunerates for work

The Company and its subsidiary Satrija AB comply with the provisions of the SA 8000 standard and the subsidiary MTF
Mrija has performed a pre-certification SA 8000 standard audit.

15. Information about the Company’s own share acquisitions

No own shares were acquired by Company during the current accounting period.
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16. Significant events subsequent to the end of the previous financial year

On 28 February 2018, announcement of unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of 2017.

On 30 March 2018, the general meeting of shareholders of Utenos TrikotaZzas AB was convened. Draft decisions of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

On 30 March 2018, supplemented agenda of the Annual Shareholders Meeting of AB "Utenos trikotaZas" that is to be held
on 25 April 2018.

On 25 April 2018, decisions of the general shareholder meeting were announced.

On 25 April 2018, annual information 2017.

On 30 April 2018, announcement of the performance results for the first quarter of 2018.

On 31 July 2018, announcement of the consolidated interim report and the financial statements for a six-month period of
2018.

On 31 October 2018, announcement of the financial statements for the 8-month period.

On 18 of December 2018. notification on the Acquisition of Voting Rights

On 18 of December 2018 , notification on the disposal of voring rights

On 21 December 2018, announcement of preliminary dates of activity results for 2019.

On 21 December 2018 Utenos trikotazas AB Group sales for 2018.

On 28 February 2019, announcement of unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of 2018,

17. The Company’s operating plans and objectives

Our strategy towards high quality production combined with socially responsible and environmentally friendly operations
addresses well current consumer trends. As a result the company enjoys strong demand from both existing and newly
acquired customers. Current sales pipeline and healthy market demand support further growth expectations.

To further strengthen our position in the markets we continue to focus on operating efficiency, acquisition of qualified
employess, and nurturing of empowering culture in the Company .

The greatest challenge we currently face are coping with increased demand in production and significantly raising wages
and salaries .

We follow our strategy to invest into sustainable and innovative technologies as well as improve operational efficiency.
Extra efforts are directed towards development of competencies, especially in the field of R&D. The demand for modem
and sustainable manufacturing is high in Europe and across the globe, therefore we keep building our position in this

segment.
L]

18. Research and development activities
The company and the group did not carry out research.

19. Structure of the Issuer's authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's authorised share capital was comprised of 9 503 000 ordinary registered shares
with a nominal value of EUR 0.29 each.

Utenos TrikotaZas AB authorised share capital according to types of shares:
Percentage in the

Type of shares Number of shares Nominal value Total nominal authorised share
(EUR) value (EUR) capital (per cent)
Ordinary registered shares 9 503 000 0.29 2755870 100.00

All shares of Utenos Trikotazas AB are fully paid. All shares of the Company are ordinary registered shares of one class
granting equal rights to their holders (shareholders).

An ordinary registered share grants the following property rights to its holder (shareholder):
1. to receive a part of the Company's profit (dividend);
2. to receive a part of assets of the Company in liquidation;

3. to receive shares without payment if the authorised capital is increased out of the Company's funds, exceptin
cases specified in the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania;
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4. to have the pre-emption right in acquiring shares or convertible debentures issued by the Company, exceptin
cases when the General Meeting of Shareholders decides to withdraw the pre-emption right in the manner
prescribed by the Lithuanian Law on Companies in acquiring the Company's newly issued shares or convertible
debentures for all the shareholders;

5. to lend to the Company in the manner prescribed by law; however, when borrowing from its shareholders, the
Company may not pledge its assets to the shareholders. When the Company borrows from a shareholder, the
interest may not be higher than the average interest rate offered by commercial banks of the locality where the
lender has his place of residence or business, which was in effect on the day of conclusion of the loan
agreement. In such a case the Company and shareholders shall be prohibited from negotiating a higher interest
rate;

6. to transfer all or part of the shares into the ownership of other persons;

7. to force other shareholders to sell their shares to them or to force other shareholders to buy their shares from
them in cases and manner prescribed by the Law on the Law on Securities Market;

8. other property rights established by laws.

An ordinary registered share grants the following non-property rights to its holder (shareholder):

1. to attend the General Meetings of Shareholders;

2. to vote at General Meetings of Shareholders according to voting rights carried by their shares; One ordinary
registered share carries one vote,

3. to receive information on the Company specified by laws;

4. to file a claim with the court for reparation of damage resulting from nonfeasance or malfeasance by the company
manager and Board members of their obligations prescribed by laws or these Articles of Association as well as
in other cases laid down by laws;

5. other non-property rights established by laws.

20. Restrictions on disposal of securities
There are no restrictions.
21. Shareholders

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of shareholders of Utenos TrikotaZzas AB was 1 153.
Information about shareholders is disclosed in Note 1 per financial statements

22. Shareholders holding special control rights and descriptions of these rights

There are no such shareholders.

23. All restrictions regarding voting rights

There are no restrictions.

24. All mutual agreements between shareholders of which the Issuer is aware and due to which restrictions on
transfer of securities and/or voting rights may be imposed

There are no such agreements.

25. Employees
Average number of employees of the Group, by companies:

2018.12.31 2017.12.31 Change, +/-
Utenos TrikotaZzas AB 793 791 0.3
Satrija AB 201 200 0.5
MTF Mrija PAT 162 166 (2.4)
Gotija UAB 3 4 (25.0)
1159 1161 (0.2)
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Employees related costs (thousand EUR) distribution, by companies:

2018 2017 Change (%)
Utenos Trikotazas AB 8414 7 293 15.4
Satrija AB 2 403 2 039 17.9
MTF Mrija PAT 624 479 30.3
Gotija UAB 34 38 (10.5)
11 475 9 849 16.5
The average monthly wages of employees before taxes:
Group Company
Warkers group 2018 2017  Change, % 2018 2017 Change, %
Managers 1618 1 566 3.3 1533 1335 148
Specialists 802 796 08 821 675 21,6
Workers 516 489 55 523 463 13.1
610 588 3.7 639 549 16.4

The Company's employee distribution by education (according to 31 December, 2018):

Employee distribution by education

Group of Non-high High
Total - gner 3 igner
employees e:&ggg& , Professional \égiigﬁgil Secondary  Basic non-
education university
Managers 47 23 15 1 1 0 7
Specialists 148 69 21 4 9 2 43
Workers 598 11 165 158 182 34 48
793 103 201 163 192 36 91
26. Management of the Group companies
Company name Managers
Utenos TrikotaZas AB Algirdas Sabinas
Satrija AB Giedrius Grondskis
MTF Mrija PAT Tatjana Roshchina
Gotija UAB Kristina Sasilaite

27. Management incentives
Management incentives are assigned by the decision of the Board taking into account the objectives met.

28. Amendment procedure of the Issuer’s Articles of Association

The Articles of Association of the Company shall be amended by the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders
adopted in the manner prescribed by laws, except in cases specified in the Lithuanian Law on Companies. Following the
decision by the General Meeting of Shareholders to amend the Company's Articles of Association, the full text of the
amended Articles of Association shall be drawn up and signed by the person authorised by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.
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29. Issuer’'s management bodies
The management bodies of the Company are listed below:

The General Meeting of Shareholders

l

The Audit committee —> The Management Board

l

The General Manager

The Articles of Association of Utenos TrikotaZas AB stipulate that the Company shall have the following bodies: the General
Meeting of Shareholders, the Board and the General Manager. The Supervisory Board shall not be set up at the Company.

The Company's Board shall be granted all powers stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association including powers
assigned to it by laws. The Board shall deal with deliberation of collegial issues and decision making.

The Board shall deliberate and approve the Company's operating strategy, management structure and job descriptions of
employees. The Board shall elect and remove from office the Company Manager, fix his salary and set other terms of the
employment contract. The Board shall specify information classified as the Company's commercial secret. The Board shall
analyse and assess the Company's draft annual and consolidated financial statements and proposed profit (loss)
appropriation and shall submit them to the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board shall pass other decisions
assigned within its powers by legal acts, by the Company's Articles of Association and by the decisions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The Board shall have a responsibility of convening and arranging the General Meetings of
Shareholders in due time. The Board of Utenos TrikotaZas AB shall be composed of 4 members elected for the period of
4 years.

The Audit committee consists of 2 {two) independent members. The Audit committee members by the submission of the
Board are being appointed and withdrawn by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The members of the Committee are
elected for the term of 4 (four) years.

In 2018 the Audit committee held 2 meetings (on 25 January 2018) and 1 meeting after the end of 2017 financial year (on
30 March 2018). During the meetings The Audit Committee considered the questions which fall under it' s competency.

The shareholders meeting held on 26 April 2017 confirmed composition of Utenos Trikotazas AB audit committee and
operating policies. The shareholders meeting held on 26 April 2017 elected Audit committee members: Arvydas Dalikas
and Genadijus Maku$evas.

Genadijus Makusevas (b. 1959)
Utenos TrikotaZas AB in dependent auditor from 26 April 2017, re-elected for four years term.

Education:
e Vilnius University, Financial Accounting 1980.
s  Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Lithuania, Certified Auditor, Certificate No. 000162, 1996;
s Various E&Y, ACCA, Grant Thornton, Mazars, Praxity International Accounting and Audit Standards, Audit
Methodology and Management Professional Training Courses.

Workplace:
e Grant Thornton Baltic UAB General Manager, auditor,

Participation in the management of other companies:
e Chairman of the Board of Grant Thornton Baltic UAB;
e«  Member of the Board of Association of Lithuanian accounting companies,
«  Member of the Presidium of Lithuanian Chamber of Auditors.
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Arvydas Dalikas (b. 1954)
AB Utenos trikotazas has an independent auditor since 2017. April 26, for a four-year term.

Education:
e Vilnius University, 1982, Financial Accounting

« Kaunas Polytechnic, technologist, 1972;
e Vilnius University Vocational Improvement Center, basics of audit profession 1994-1995;
o  Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Lithuania, certified auditor, certificate Nr. 000052. 19986;
e Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Ireland, improvement courses, 2010;
Workplace:

e MGI In salvo UAB audit company The partner

Participation in the management of other companies:
s Member of the international audit network "MGI Worldwide" UAB MGI In salvo since 2004,
s Member of the Lithuanian Audit Chamber's Quality Contrel Committee since 2009;
e Member of the Court of Auditors of the Republic of Lithuania, President 2009-2015;
° JSC "ADKF", general Manager, owner since 1991,
° Kaunas Construction Repair Trust, Restoration Board, Senior Accountant, Centralized Accounting, 1984-1992,

The Duties of the Audit Committee:

1. To observe the process of preparation of the Company's financial reports;

2. To review the systems of internal control, risk management and internal audit, if it exists in the Company;

3. To observe the process of external audit;

4. To observe how the external auditor or audit company follows the principles of independence and objectivity;

5. To provide the Board of the Company with written recommendations regarding the selection, appointment and
recall of an external audit company.

6. To immediately inform the Managing Director of the company about information provided by the audit company

to audit committee about audit related problematic issues especially when significant control defects related to
financial statements occur.

Audit committee rights:

- To get complete informaticn and (or) documents (their copies) needed for the audit committee to perform their duties.
On the audit committee request Administration of the Company must provide the information and (or) documents
(their copies) to the Audit committee per 3 working days.

- To get complete information on details of accounting, financial and other operations of the company. On the audit
committee request Administration of the Company as well as on its own initiative must inform the audit committee of
the methods used to account for significant and (or) unusual transactions where the accounting treatment may be
open to different approaches. In such case a special consideration should be given to company's operations in off
shores and (or) activities carried out through special purpose vehicles (organizations), for the purpose to clarify the
justification of such operations.

Audit committee members may be remunerated for their operations. Remunerations and the payment terms are determined
by the submission of the board by the General shareholders meeting.
30. Members of the collegial bodies, the Company Manager, the Finance Manager

As at 31 December 2018:
Number of the Beginning of

Position Name, surname Issuer's the term of End of the term
shares held office of office
Board
Chairman of the Board Gintautas Rudis 28 2016.09.05 2021.04.30
Member of the Board Algirdas Sabinas 950 300 2016.09.05 2021.04.30
Member of the Board Vytautas Vaskys 3 2013.04.30 2021.04.30
Member of the Board Giedrius Grondskis = 2017.04.26 2021.04.30
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Head of Administration and the Chief Financial Officer

General Manager Algirdas Sabiinas 950 300 2016.09.086 =
Finance Director Andrej Grobov - 2015.02.03 -

The Audit committee

The independent auditor Genadijus Makusevas - 2013.04.30 2021.04.30
The independent auditor Arvydas Dalikas = 2017.04.26 2021.04.30

The Company has not entered into any agreements with members of the organs or employees providing compensation if
they would resign or be dismissed without good reason or if their work would end due to the change in the Company's
control.

Company did not have information of any significant indirect share heldings during the reporting period.

During the whole practice of the Company no remunerations to the members of a collegial body (Members of the Board,
Members of the audit committee) for their work and participation in the meetings of the collegial body were paid.

Information about hoard members:
Gintautas Rudis (b. 1963)

Utenos trikotazas AB board member from 29 January 2008, re-elected for four years term on 26 April 2017. As the
chairman of the Board was re-elected on 2 Mach 2017.

Education: Kaunas University of Technology, Master degree in Management.

Working place:
« Enteco Baltic UAB, CEO.
s« Euromodus UAB, CEOQ.
»  Association "Pramonés ir rinkodaros verslo centras" CEO
« Evenmor UAB, CEO.

Participation in the management of other companies:

Utenos trikotaZzas AB the chairman of the board
Koncernas SBA UAB, the board member

Urban Inventors UAB, the board member

Satrija AB, the board member

Kauno baldai AB, the chairman of the supervisory board
Silutes baldai AB, the supervisory board

Euromodus UAB the chairman of the board

Enteco Baltic UAB the general manager

Euromodus UAB the general manager

Asscciation "Pramonés ir rinkodaros verslo centras" the general manager
Kempingo slényje, UAB the chairman of the board

Algirdas Sabanas (b. 1974)
Member of the board of Utenos trikotaZzas AB is from 26 April 2017, for a four-year term.

Education:
»  \ytautas Magnus University , Master degree in Finance and Banking, doctoral degree in Social Sciences.

Working place:
e« Utenos trikotazas AB, CEO

Participation in the management of other companies:

o Satrija AB, the chairman of the board
* Koncernas SBA UAB, the board member
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e« Utenos trikotazas AB, the board member
Vytautas Vaskys (b. 1967)

Utenos TrikotaZzas AB board member from 29 April 2009, re-elected for four years term on 26 April 2017.

Educatien:
e Kaunas University of Technology, Master degree in International Management and Business Administration
(EMBA).

Working place:
« Koncernas SBA UAB, business risks director.

Participation in the management of other companies:

Enteco Baltic UAB, the chairman of the board
Klaipedos baldy prekyba UAB, the chairman of the board
Kauno baldai AB the chairman of the board
Euromodus UAB, the board member

Satrija AB, the board member

Urban Inventors UAB, the board member

SBA Baldy Kompanija UAB, the board member
Utenos TrikotaZas AB, the board member

MTF Mrija PAT, the supervisory board member
BEI Capital UAB, director

Novo mebel ZAO, the board member

Kempingo slényje, UAB the chairman of the board
Kaldera UAB, general Manager

e e e o e & @ o @& & ©° e o

Giedrius Gromskis (b. 1973)
Member of the board of Utenos trikotazas AB from 26 April 2017, for a four-year term..

Education:
* Doctor of the KTU Social Sciences (Administration and Management).

Workplace:
o Satrija AB, general manager
Participation in the management of other companies:
e Kauno Baldai UAB Member of the Board
In 2018, no loans, guarantees, sponsorships were issued and no assets were disposed to members of the Company's

Board and Administration. In 2018, the aggregate remuneration of the Company General Manager and the Finance Director
amounted to EUR 197.3 thousand.

31. Information about significant agreements

The Company has concluded no significant agreements in which the Company is a party to and which would come into
effect, change or terminate as a result of the change in the control of the Company.

32. Information about the compliance with the Governance Code

The Companies are guided in accordance with Paragraph 3 of Article 21 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of
Lithuania and Paragraph 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock Exchange of the Public Company " Vilnius Stock
Exchange"; this report discloses compliance with the management code of the companies regulated by the Vilnius Stock
Exchange and the specific codes of the companies regulated on the regulated market. its provisions (annex to the annual
report).
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33. Information about transactions with related parties

Results of transactions with related parties performed in 2018 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of AB
Utenos Trikotazas for the period ended as at 31 December 2018.

34. Data on publicly announced information

The Company announces information on significant events (as well as other information required by laws}) through the
system of information disclosure and communication Globe Newswire. Publicly announced information is also available on
the Company's website at www ut It and on the website of the Vilnius Stock Exchange at www.baltic.omxgroup.com.

35. Company's auditor

AB Utenos Trikotazas Audit of the Financial Statements for 2018 agreement is signed up with ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
UAB (identification code 110878442, the registered address: Subagiaus str. 7, Vilnius). The annual remuneration for the

audit services EUR is 23.300 (twenty free thousand three hundred euros) plus VAT.

36. General information on the Group of companies

36.1. Companies that constitute the Group, their contact data and principle activities

Company name

Legal form

Date and place of incorporation
Company code

Address

Telephone

Fax

E-mail

Website

Principal activities

Satrija AB
Public company

1955m. Vilniaus 5, 4400 Raseiniai

172285032

Vilniaus 5, 4400 Raseiniai
8 (428) 70611

8 (428) 70611
raseiniai@satrija.lt.

www. satrija.lt

Sewing of clothes

Company name

Legal form

Date and place of incorporation
Company code

Address

Telephone

Fax

E-mail

Website

Principal activities

Mukaéevska Trikotaznaja Fabrika Mrija PAT

Open public company

1971m. Matrosova 13, 89600 Mukacevo, Ukraine

00307253

Matrosova 13, 89600 Mukacevo, Ukraine

+ 380 (3131) 52780

+380 (3131) 52780
mriva@mk.ukrtel.net

www. mrivamukachevo.com
Production of knit-wear articles

Company name

Legal form

Date and place of incorporation
Company code

Address

Telephone

Fax

E-mail

Website

Principal activities

Gotija UAB
Private company
1994m. Laisvés al. 33, Kaunas
134181619
Laisvés al. 33, Kaunas
8 (37) 205879
8 (37) 205879
otija@ut.It
None
Retail trade in knitwear products
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36.2.Trade in securities of the Group companies in regulated markets

Subsidiaries Satrija AB, PAT MTF Mrija, Gotija UAB do not trade in securities in regulated markets.

37. Information on harmful transactions in which the issuer is a party.

There were no harmful transactions (those that are not in line with issuer's goals, not under usual market terms, harmful
to the shareholders' or stakeholders' interests, etc.) made in the name of the issuer that had or potentially could have
negative effects in the future on the issuer’s activities or business results. There were also no transactions where a conflict
of interest was present between issuer's management's, controlling shareholders 'or other related parties' obligations to
the issuer and their private interests.

38. Diversity policy

Diversity policy applies to the election of members of the company's management, management and supervisory bodies.
The top-level team should, depending on the law, be made up of sufficient diversity, including, for example, gender, age,
geographical origin, education and work experience.

39. Corporate governance

Information is pprepared in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Companies Financial Reporting Law
(IX575), effective from 28.11.2017, applicable to annual reports of companies reporting periods beginning on or after 1% of
January 2017).

39.1 A reference to the applicable Corporate Governance Code and where it is publicly disclosed and / or by
reference to the publicly available complete information on corporate governance practices

The Company provides information on compliance with the applicable Corporate Governance Code in 2018. in the annex
to the consolidated annual report. The company publishes its annual reports on the webpage in Investors section.

39.2 If the provisions of the applicable Corporate Governance Code are divergent and / or non-compliant, the
provisions for which the derogations and / or non-compliance and the reasons

The company publishes this information in 2018. in the Appendix to the consolidated report to the Annual Report on
Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, "Yes / No / Not applicable” and "Comment"

39.3 Information on risk scale and risk management - Description of risk management related to the financial
statements, risk mitigation measures and the company's internal control system

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements, internal control and financial risk management
systems, compliance with the legislation regulating the preparation of consolidated financial statements are monitored by
the Audit Committee

The Company is responsible for the supervision and final oversight of the preparation of consolidated financial statements.
The Company is constantly reviewing International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to ensure timely implementation
of all IFRS developments in the financial statements, analyze transactions that are significant to the Company's and the
Group's activities, ensure collection of information from the Group companies, and timely and correct processing and
preparation of that information for the financial statements, periodically informing The Board of the Company on the
progress of preparation of financial statements.

39.4 Information on significant direct or indirect holding of shares

Information on significant direct or indirect holding of shares is disclosed in note 1 of 2018 financial statements of the
Groups and the Company

39.5 Information on shareholders with specific control rights and a description of these rights

The company does not have shareholders with special control rights.
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39.6 Information on all existing limitations of voting rights, such as a certain percentage of votes or the number
of persons entitled to vote, restrictions on the use of voting rights or systems in which the property rights granted
by the securities are separated from the holder of the securities

The Company does not impose any restrictions on rights.

39.7 Information on the rules governing the election and amendment of board members, as well as changes to the
articles of association of the company

The Company does not have the rules governing the election and amendment of Board members. The Board of the
Company acts in accordance with the Law on Companies, the Articles of Association of the Company, the Rules of
Procedure of the Board and other legal acts. The members of the Board are always working to benefit the Company and
its shareholders.

The procedure for changing the Company's Articles of Association does not differ from the Law om Company’s
39.8 Information on the powers of the members of the Board.

The members of the Board of the Company act in accordance with the Law on Companies, the Articles of Association, the
Rules of Procedure of the Board and other legal acts, and do not have special powers. The members of the Board are

always working to benefit the Company and its shareholders.

39.9 Information on the competence of the general meeting of shareholders, the rights of shareholders and their
implementation, if this information is not provided by law

The company provides information about the competence of the general meeting, the shareholders' rights and their
implementation, as well as the organization of meetings of shareholders present in 2018. in the annex of the consolidated
annual report.

39.10 Information on the composition of management, supervisory bodies and their committees, and their areas
of activity

The company provides information on the members of the company's board, the director in 2018. In the notes 26, 29, 30
of the consolidate annual report, which outline the scope of the management's activities, mention is made of other important
information related to the positions held.

39.11 Election of members of the company's manager, management and supervisory bodies is subject to diversity
policies related to aspects such as age, gender, education, professional experience, description of the objectives,
policy objectives, methods and results of this policy during the reporting period. If the diversity policy does not
apply, the reasons for non-application are explained

The election of the members of the Board of Directors and the Head of the Company is subject to the diversity policy

39.12 Information on the remuneration of each member of the management and supervisory body (average
salaries paid during the reporting period, with separate mention of bonuses, bonuses, bonuses and other
payments)

The members of the Board of the Company for the four-year term are elected at the shareholders’ meeting and no
employment contracts are concluded with them as they represent shareholders and are not employees of the Company.
On the basis of the decision of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, annual payments (tandems) to the members
of the Management Board for the work of the Board may be approved by approving the profit distribution report. The
Company did not issue loans to members of the management bodies, did not provide guarantees and guarantees to ensure
the fulfillment of their obligations.

The Board approves the main terms of the employment contract of the team members. Information on the remuneration
paid to the directors of the Company and the Group is disclosed in Note 25 of the financial statements of the Company
and the Group.

39.13 Information on all agreements between shareholders (their essence, conditions).

The shareholders of the company have no mutual agreements.
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40. Subsequent sheet events

There were no significant subsequent events that could have a significant effect.

General Manager Algirdas Sabanas 28 March 2018
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Article 1. APPENDIX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT
Article 11, UTENOS TRIKOTAZAS AB DISCLOSURE CONCERNING THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE GOVERNANCE
CODE FOR THE COMPANIES LISTED ON THE REGULATED MARKET IN 2018

Utenos Trikotazas AB (hereinafter "the Company”) following paragraph 3 of Article 21 of the Law of the Republic of Lithuania
on Public Trading in Securities and item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance with
the Governance Code, approved by the VSE for the companies listed on the regulated market, and its specific provisions.

[ YESINO.;‘

NOT
APPLIC

| ABLE |

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS COMMENTARY

| Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in common interests of all the shareholders by optimizing
over time shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public the company's Relevant matters are made public in the Company's
| development strategy and objectives by clearly declaring how internet site www.ut.It and on the website of the Stock
| the company intends to meet the interests of its shareholders Yes Exchange.
| and optimize shareholder value.
| 1.2. All management bodies of a company should act in | Every year the Company's board approves the plans of
furtherance of the declared strategic objectives in view of the operation containing the description of the Company's |
need to optimize shareholder value. development strategy for 2-3 upcoming years. All |
bodies of the Company are familiarised with the
Yes strategic objectives and the ways of their
| implementation as set forth in the plans of operation.
‘ The Company has implemented a motivation system,
which ensures direct link between the strategic
\ objectives and personal performance of individual
‘ S = g | I employees. N
1.3. A company's supervisory and management bodies This recommendation is implemented by the board,
should act in close co-operation in order to attain maximum ves  audit committee and chief executive officer (the
‘ benefit for the company and its shareholders. ‘ supervisory board has not been set up). |
|
| 1.4. A company's supervisory and management bodies | The Company has a collective employment contractin |
‘ should ensure that the rights and interests of persons other | place. The board every quarter review employee

than the company's shareholders (e.g. employees, creditors, | Yes |
suppliers, clients, local community), participating in or
connected with the company's operation, are duly respected. ‘

related social questions.

[ Principle Il: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guidance of the company, the effective oversight of
the company’s management bodies, an appropriate balance and distribution of functions between the company’s
bodies, protection of the shareholders’ interests. |
2.1 Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law on | ‘

Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a general shareholders’ |
meeting and the chief executive officer, it is recommended that a
company should set up both a collegial supervisory body and a
collegial management body. The setting up of collegial bodies for
supervision and management facilitates clear separation of
management and supervisory functions in the company,
accountability and control on the part of the chief executive officer,
which, in its turn, facilitate a more efficient and transparent
management process. -
2.2. A collegial management body is responsible for the strategic
management of the company and performs other key functions of The functions described in the recommendation are
corporate governance. A collegial supervisory body is responsible | Yes | fulfilled at the Company by a collegial management
for the effective supervision of the company's management | | body — the board.
bodies. |

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one collegial body, it |
is recommended that it should be a supervisory body, ie. the
supervisory board. In such a case, the supervisory board is
responsible for the effective monitoring of the functions performed

| by the company's chief executive officer.

The supervisory board has not been set up,
however, the general meeting of shareholders has
elected the board. The Company's chief executive
officer and the chairman of the board is not one and
the same person.

No

No Only one collegial body has been set up the Board.

89



Consolidated Annual Report for 2018

uTendJs

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting should be set up and should act in the
manner defined in Principles Ill and I\V. Where a company should
decide not to set up a collegial supervisory body but rather a
collegial management body, i.e. the board, Principles Ill and IV
should apply to the board as long as that does not contradict the
essence and purpose of this body.

2.5, Company's management and supervisory bodies should |
comprise such number of board (executive directors) and
supervisory (non-executive directors) board members that no
individual or small group of individuals can dominate decision-
making on the part of these bodies.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supervisory board
should be appointed for specified terms subject to individual re-
election, at maximum intervals provided for in the Lithuanian
legislation with a view to ensuring necessary development of
professional experience and sufficiently frequent reconfirmation of
their status. A possibility to remove them should also be stipulated
however this procedure should not be easier than the removal
procedure for an executive director or a member of the
management board.

shareholders’ meeting may be a persen whose current or past
office constitutes no obstacle to conduct independent and
impartial supervision. Where a company should decide not to set
up a supervisory board but rather the board, it is recommended
that the chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the
company should be a different person. Former company's chief
executive officer should not be immediately nominated as the
chairman of the collegial body elected by the general
| shareholders’ meeting. When a company chooses to departure
- from these recommendations, it should furnish information on the
measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of the supervision.

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by the general |

Yes

Yes

Not
applica
ble

<

es

| No comments.

The Company's board is composed of 4 members.
The head of the company is not the chairman of
| the board

' There are no non-executive directors and the
supervisory board.

The Company is in compliance with this
recommendation. The Company has not set up the
supervisory board, and the chairman of the board
has never been in the past and currently is not the
Company's chief executive officer.

Finciple 1lI: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting should ensure
representation of minority shareholders, accountability of this body to the shareholders and objective monitoring of the

| company’s operation and its management bodies.

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a colleglal body to be
elected by a general shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in this
Principle referred to as the 'collegial body') should ensure
objective and fair monitoring of the company's management
bodies as well as representation of minority shareholders.

of a collegial body, information about their education, qualification,
professional background, positions taken and potential conflicts of
interest should be disclosed early enough before the general
shareholders' meeting so that the shareholders would have
sufficient time to make an informed voting decision. All factors
affecting the candidate's independence, the sample list of which
is set out in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed, The
collegial body should also be informed on any subseguent
changes in the provided information. The collegial body should,
on yearly basis, collect data provided in this item on its members
and disclose this in the company s annual report.

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to become members

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members of a colleglal '

body, such nomination should be followed by the disclosure of
information on candidate's particular competences relevant to
his/her service on the collegial bady. In order shareholders and
investars are able to ascertain whether member's competence is
further relevant, the collegial body should, in its annual report,
disclose the information on its composition and particular
competences of individual members which are relevant to their
service on the collegial body.
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Yes

Yes

A collegial management body is set up in

accordance with the requirements of the Lithuanian
Law on Companies, and the shareholders are
notified of candidates to become members of the
Company's collegial management body.

This information on candidates to the board was
disclosed to the shareholders together with the
notification on convening the general meeting of
shareholders (in accordance with the requirements
of the Lithuanian Law on Companies), which
involved the election of members to the board, and
the agenda of the general meeting of shareholders.

Information published about the board members in
the annual report: education, occupation,
participation in the management of the other
companies
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3.4 In order to maintain a proper balance in terms of the current |
qualifications possessed by its members, the collegial body

' should determine its desired composition with regard to the

company's structure and activities, and have this periodically
evaluated. The collegial body should ensure that it is composed
of members who, as a whole, have the required diversity of
knowledge, judgment and experience to complete their tasks
properly. The members of the audit committee, collectively,
should have a recent knowledge and relevant experience in the
fields of finance, accounting and/or audit for the stock exchange
listed companies. - - |
3.5. All new members of the collegial body should be offered a

tailored program focused on introducing a member with his/her

duties, corporate organization and activities. The collegial body |
should conduct an annual review to identify fields where its |
members need to update their skills and knowledge. [

| 3.6. In order to ensure that all material confiicts of interest related |

with a member of the collegial body are resclved properly, the
collegial body should comprise a sufficient number of independent
members.

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be considered to be |
independent only if he is free of any business, family or other
relationship with the company, its controlling shareholder or the
management of either, that creates a conflict of interest such as
to impair his judgment. Since all cases when member of the
collegial body is likely to become dependant are impossible to list,
moreover, relationships and circumstances associated with the
determination of independence may vary amongst companies
and the best practices of solving this problem are yet to evolve in
the course of time, assessment of independence of a member of
the collegial body should be based on the contents of the
relationship and circumstances rather than their form. The key
criteria for identifying whether a member of the collegial body can
be considered to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member of the
board (if a collegial body elected by the general |
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) of the ‘
company or any associated company and has not been
such during the last five years;

2) Hefshe is not an employee of the company or some any
company and has not been such during the last three
years, except for cases when a member of the collegial
body does not belong to the senior management and
was elected to the collegial body as a representative of
the employees;

3) Helishe is not receiving or has been not receiving
significant additional remuneration from the company or
associated company other than remuneration for the
office in the collegial body. Such additional
remuneration includes participation in share options or |
some other performance based pay systems; it does not
include compensation payments for the previous office
in the company (provided that such payment is no way
related with later position) as per pension plans
(inclusive of deferred compensations),

4) He/she is not a controlling shareholder or representative
of such shareholder (control as defined in the Council
Directive 83/349/EEC Article 1Part 1); |
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Yes

Yes

|

No

No

The members of the Company's management
bodies are actively involved in a wide range of
areas in other companies, which enables them to
ensure an adequate competence in respect of their
current functions.

Newly appointed members by collegial body are
acquainted with their duties, the company's
organization and operations.

During the whole practice of the Company, the
independence of the board members has not been
subject to any assessments so far.

All members of the Management Board work in
the companies related with the controlling
shareholder.
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5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated
company within the past year directly or as a partner,
shareholder, director or superior employee of the ‘
subject having such relationship. A subject is
considered to have business relations when it is a major
supplier or service provider (inclusive of financial, legal,
counseling and consulting services), major client or
organization receiving significant payments from the
company or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the last three
years, partner or employee of the current or former
external audit company of the company or associated
company;

7) Helshe is not an executive director or member of the
board in some other company where executive director
of the company or member of the board (if a collegial
body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is
the supervisory board) is non-executive director or
member of the supervisory board, he/she may not also
have any other material relationships with executive
directors of the company that arise from their
participation in activities of other companies or bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member of the
collegial body for over than 12 years; I

9) Helshe is not a close relative to an executive director or
member of the board (if a collegial body elected by the
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board)
or to any person listed in above items 1 to 8. Close
relative is considered to be a spouse (common-law
spouse), children and parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes independence is
fundamentally an issue for the collegial body itself to determine.
The collegial body may decide that, despite a particular member
meets all the criteria of independence laid down in this Code, he
cannot be considered independent due to special personal or
company-related circumstances.

No

No

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the collegial body has
come to in its determination of whether a particular member of the
body should be considered to be independent should be
disclosed. When a person is nominated to become a member of
the collegial body, the company should disclose whether it
considers the person to be independent. When a particular
member of the collegial body does not meet one or more criteria
of independence set out in this Code, the company should
disclose its reasons for nevertheless considering the member to
be independent. In addition, the company should annually
disclose which members of the collegial body it considers to be
independent.

No

During the whole practice of the Company, the
independence of the board members has not
been subject to any assessments so far.

During the whole practice of the Company, the
independence of the board members has not been
subject to any assessments so far.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independence set out in this
Code has not been met throughout the year, the company should
disclose its reasons for considering a particular member of the
collegial body to be independent. To ensure accuracy of the
information disclosed in relation with the independence of the
members of the collegial body, the company should require
independent members to have their independence periodically re-
confirmed.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a collegial body for their |
work and participation in the meetings of the collegial body, they |
may be remunerated from the company's funds. The general |
shareholders’ meeting should approve the amount of such

remuneration.

No

During the whole practice of the Company, the
independence of the board members has not been
subject to any assessments so far.

During the whole practice of the Company no
remunerations to the members of a collegial body
for their work and participation in the meetings of
the collegial body were paid. Information is
disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
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Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corporate governance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the collegial body elected by
the general shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial body should ensure effective monitoring of

the company’s management bodies and protection of interests of all the company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting
(hereinafter in this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body') should
ensure integrity and transparency of the company's financial statements
and the control system. The collegial body should issue recommendations
to the company's management bodies and monitor and control the
company's management performance.

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act in good faith, with care and
responsibility for the benefit and in the interests of the company and its
shareholders with due regard to the interests of employees and public
welfare. Independent members of the collegial body should (a) under all
circumstances maintain independence of their analysis, decision-making
and actions (b) do not seek and accept any unjustified privileges that might
compromise their independence, and (c) clearly express their objections
should a member consider that decision of the collegial body is against the
interests of the company. Should a collegial body have passed decisions
independent member has serious doubts about, the member should make
adequate conclusions. Should an independent member resign from his
office, he should explain the reasans in a letter addressed to the collegial
body or audit committee and, if necessary, respective company-not- \
pertaining body (institution). ‘

| bady should limit other professional obligations of his (in particular any

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time and attention to perform
his duties as a member of the collegial body. Each member of the collegial

directorships held in other companies) in such a manner they do not
interfere with proper performance of duties of a member of the collegial
bedy. In the event a member of the collegial body should be present in less
than a half of the meetings of the collegial bedy throughout the financial
year of the company, shareholders of the company should be notified.

4.4, Where decisions of a collegial body may have a different effect on the

company's shareholders, the collegial body should treat all shareholders
impartially and fairly. It should ensure that shareholders are properly
informed on the company's affairs, strategies, risk management and
resolution of conflicts of interest. The company should have a clearly
established role of members of the collegial body when communicating with
and committing to shareholders. |

body and the

in accordance with the

4.5, It is recommended that transactions (except insignificant ones due to
their low value or concluded when carrying out routine operations in the
company under usual conditions), concluded between the company and its
shareholders, members of the supervisory or managing bodies or other
natural or legal persons that exert or may exert influence on the company's
management should be subject to approval of the collegial body. The
decision concerning approval of such transactions should be deemed
adopted only provided the majority of the independent members of the
collegial body voted for such a decision.

" 4.6. The collegial body should be independent in passing decisions that are |

significant for the company's operations and strategy. Taken separately, ‘
the collegial body should be independent of the company's management
bodies. Members of the collegial body should act and pass decisions
without an outside influence from the persons who have elected it.
Companies should ensure that the collegial body and its committees are

Yes = Nocomments.
! - E——
|
‘ Yes | Nocomments.
Yes | The board members responsibly carries
‘ duties of collegial body.
| !
‘ The Company's Articles of Association
define the procedure of co-operation
Yes | between a collegial
shareholders
. Lithuanian Law on Companies.
|
|
| \
| During the whole practice of the Company,
\ No | the independence of the board members
\ | has not been subject to any assessments
\ so far.
|
|
|
| {
Y5 |The Company's employees are not a

provided with sufficient administrative and financial resources to discharge
their duties, including the right to obtain, in particular from employees of the
company, all the necessary information or to seek independent legal,
accounting or any other advice con issues pertaining to the competence of
the collegial body and its committees.
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members of the board.



Consolidated Annual Report for 2018

independent members of the collegial bady could have major influence in
relevant areas where chances of occurrence of conflicts of interest are very
high. Such areas to be considered as highly relevant are issues of
nomination of company's directors, determination of directors'
remuneration and control and assessment of company's audit. Therefore
when the mentioned issues are attributable to the competence of the
collegial body, it is recommended that the collegial body should establish
nomination, remuneration, and audit committees. Companies should
ensure that the functions attributable to the nomination, remuneration, and
audit committees are carried out. However they may decide to merge these
functions and set up less than three committees. In such case a company
should explain in detail reasons behind the selection of alternative approach
and how the selected approach complies with the objectives set forth for
the three different committees. Should the collegial body of the company
comprise small number of members, the functions assigned to the three
committees may be performed by the collegial body itself, provided that it
meets composition requirements advocated for the committees and that
adequate information is provided in this respect. In such case provisions of
this Code relating to the committees of the collegial body (in particular with
respect to their role, operation, and transparency) should apply, where
relevant, to the collegial body as a whole.

No

During the whole practice of the Company,

| the independence of the board members
has not been subject to any assessments
so far.

[The rights and duties of the audit committee

are provided in the audit committee's

regulations, confirmed during shareholder

meeting 30 April 2013.

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to increase efficiency of the
activities of the collegial body by ensuring that decisions are based on due
consideration, and to help organize its work with a view to ensuring that the
decisions it takes are free of material conflicts of interest. Committees
should present the collegial body with recommendations concerning the
decisions of the collegial body. Nevertheless the final decision shall be
adopted by the collegial body. The recommendation on creation of
committees is not intended, in principle, to constrict the competence of the

collegial body or to remove the matters considered from the purview of the |

collegial body itself, which remains fully responsible for the decisions taken

in its field of competence.

4.9. Committees established by the collegial body should normally be
composed of at least three members. In companies with small number of
members of the collegial body, they could exceptionally be composed of
two members. Majority of the members of each committee should be
constituted from independent members of the collegial body. In cases when
the company chooses not to set up a supervisory board, remuneration and
audit committees should be entirely comprised of non-executive directors.
Chairmanship and membership of the committees should be decided with
due regard to the need to ensure that committee membership is refreshed
and that undue reliance is not placed on particular individuals.

Yes

Yes

The Audit Committee acts in accordance
with the approved regulations of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit committees composed of 2

independent members.

| 4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be determined by the

collegial body. Committees should perform their duties in line with authority

| delegated to them and inform the collegial body on their activities and

taken to reach this conclusion.

performance on regular basis. Authority of every committee stipulating the
role and rights and duties of the committee should be made public at least
once a year (as part of the information disclosed by the company annually
on its corporate governance structures and practices). Companies should
also make public annually a statement by existing committees on their
composition, number of meetings and attendance over the year, and their
main activities. Audit committee should confirm that it is satisfied with the
independence of the audit process and describe briefly the actions it has

4.11. In order to ensure independence and impartiality of the committees,
members of the collegial body that are not members of the committee
should commonly have a right to participate in the meetings of the
committee only if invited by the committee. A committee may invite or
demand participation in the meeting of particular officers or experts.
Chairman of each of the committees should have a possibility to maintain
direct communication with the shareholders. Events when such are to be
performed should be specified in the regulations for committee activities.
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No

Yes

|
‘Yes. The Audit Committee acts in

accordance  with  the  approved
regulations of the Audit Committee.

The annual report does not include
committee's reports.

Yes. The audit committee has the right to
invite the Company's Manager, members
of the Board, the Chief Financier, other
employees responsible for finances, as
well as external auditors to attend its
meetings.
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4.12. Nomination Committee.

|
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committee should be the following:

1) Identify and recommend, for the approval of the collegial body,
candidates to fill board vacancies. The nomination committee should
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the
management body, prepare a description of the roles and capabilities
required to assume a particular office, and assess the time commitment
expected. Nomination committee can also consider candidates to
members of the collegial body delegated by the shareholders of the
company;

2) Assess on regular basis the structure, size, composition and
performance of the supervisory and management bodies, and make
recommendations to the collegial body regarding the means of
achieving necessary changes;

3) Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual directors and report on this to the collegial body;

4) Properly consider issues related to succession planning;

5) Review the policy of the management bodies for selection and
appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider proposals by other parties,

including management and shareholders. When dealing with issues related

to executive directors or members of the board (if a collegial body elected

by the general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) and senior

management, chief executive officer of the company should be consulted
by, and entitled to submit proposals to the nomination committee.

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration committee should be the

following:

1) Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial bedy, on the
remuneration policy for members of management bodies and executive
directors. Such policy should address all forms of compensation,
including the fixed remuneration, performance-based remuneration
schemes, pension arrangements, and termination payments. Proposals
considering performance-based remuneration schemes should be
accompanied with recommendations on the related objectives and
evaluation criteria, with a view to properly aligning the pay of executive
director and members of the management bodies with the long-term
interests of the shareholders and the objectives set by the collegial body;

2) Make proposals to the collegial body on the individual remuneration for
executive directors and member of management bodies in order their
remunerations are consistent with company's remuneration policy and
the evaluation of the performance of these persons concerned. In doing
so, the committee should be properly informed on the total
compensation obtained by executive directors and members of the
management bodies from the affiliated companies;

3) Make proposals to the collegial body on suitable forms of contracts for
executive directors and members of the management bodies;

| 4) Assist the collegial body in overseeing how the company complies with

applicable provisions regarding the remuneration-related information

disclosure (in particular the remuneration policy applied and individual |

remuneration of directors);

5) Make general recommendations to the executive directors and
members of the management bodies on the level and structure of
remuneration for senior management (as defined by the collegial body)
with regard to the respective information provided by the executive
directors and members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and other share-based incentives

which may be granted to directors or other employees, the committee

should:

1) Consider general policy regarding the granting of the above mentioned
schemes, in particular stock options, and make any related proposals to
the collegial body;

No

No

UTenas

There is no Nomination Committee.

|
‘ here is no Remuneration Committee. |
|
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2) Examine the related information that is given in the company’s annual

UTEeNas

report and documents intended for the use during the shareholders
meeting;

3) Make proposals to the collegial body regarding the choice between
granting options to subscribe shares or granting options to purchase |
shares, specifying the reasons for its choice as well as the
consequences that this choice has.

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributable to the competence of the

remuneration committee, the committee should at least address the ‘

chairman of the collegial body and/or chief executive officer of the company
for their opinion on the remuneration of other executive directors or ‘

members of the management bodies. 1

4.14. Audit Committee. \

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee should be the following:

1) Observe the integrity of the financial information provided by the
company, in particular by reviewing the relevance and consistency of
the accounting methods used by the company and its group (including
the criteria for the consolidation of the accounts of companies in the
group);

2) At least once a year review the systems of internal control and risk
management to ensure that the key risks (inclusive of the risks in relation
with compliance with existing laws and regulations) are properly
identified, managed and reflected in the information provided,

3) Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit function, among other things,
by making recommendations on the selection, appointment,
reappointment and removal of the head of the internal audit department
and on the budget of the department, and by monitoring the
responsiveness of the management to its findings and
recommendations. Should there be no internal audit authority in the
company, the need for one should be reviewed at least annually;

4) Make recommendations to the collegial body related with selection,
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor (to be
done by the general shareholders’ meeting) and with the terms and
conditions of his engagement. The committee should investigate
situations that lead to a resignation of the audit company or auditor and
make recommendations on required actions in such situations;

5) Monitor independence and impartiality of the external auditor, in
particular by reviewing the audit company's compliance with applicable
guidance relating to the rotation of audit partners, the level of fees paid
by the company, and similar issues. In order to prevent occurrence of
material conflicts of interest, the committee, based on the auditor's
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations paid by the company to
the auditor and network, should at all times monitor nature and extent of
the non-audit services. Having regard to the principals and guidelines
established in the 16 May 2002 Commission Recommendation
2002/590/EC, the committee should determine and apply a formal policy
establishing types of non-audit services that are (a) excluded, (b)
permissible only after review by the committee, and (c) permissible
without referral to the committee;

6) Review efficiency of the external audit process and responsiveness of
management to recommendations made in the external auditor's
management letter.

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be furnished with complete
information on particulars of accounting, financial and other cperations of
the company. Company’s management should inform the audit committee
of the methods used to account for significant and unusual transactions
where the accounting treatment may be open tc different approaches. In
such case a special consideration should be given to company’s operations
in offshore centers and/or activities carried out through special purpose
vehicles (organizations) and justification of such operations.
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Yes

| The Audit Committee performs functions
that are stipulated in the regulations of
the Audit Committee.
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4.14.3. The audit committee should decide whether participation of the |
chairman of the collegial body, chief executive officer of the company, chief |
financial officer (or superior employees in charge of finances, treasury and |
accounting), or internal and external auditors in the meetings of the I
committee is required (if required, when). The committee should be entitled,
when needed, to meet with any relevant person without executive directors
and members of the management bedies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should be secured with not only
effective working relationship with management, but also with free access
' to the collegial body. For this purpose the audit committee should act as the |

principal contact person for the internal and external auditors.

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed of the internal auditor's

work program, and should be furnished with internal audit's reports or

periodic summaries. The audit committee should also be informed of the

work program of the external auditor and should be furnished with report

disclosing all relationships between the independent auditor and the

company and its group. The committee should be timely furnished
| information on all issues arising from the audit.
4.148. The audit committee should examine whether the company is
following applicable provisions regarding the possibility for employees to ,
report alleged significant irregularities in the company, by way of complaints |
or through anonymous submissions (normally to an independent member
of the collegial body), and should ensure that there is a procedure
established for proportionate and independent investigation of these issues
and for appropriate follow-up action.
4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its activities to the collegial
body at least once in every six months, at the time the yearly and half-yearly
statements are approved. @~ -
4.15. Every year the collegial body should conduct the assessment of its
activities. The assessment should include evaluation of collegial body's
structure, work organization and ability to act as a group, evaluation of each
of the collegial body member's and committee’'s competence and work
efficiency and assessment whether the collegial bedy has achieved its
objectives. The collegial body should, at least once a year, make public (as
part of the information the company annually discloses on its management
structures and practices) respective information on its internal organization ‘
and working procedures, and specify what material changes were made as
a result of the assessment of the collegial body of its own activities.

No No comments.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company's collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and management bodies established in the company should ensure efficient
operation of these bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the company’s bodies.

in this Principle the concept ‘collegial bodies' covers both the collegial
bodies of supervision and the collegial bedies of management) should
be chaired by chairpersons of these bodies. The chairperson of a
collegial body is responsible for proper convocation of the collegial body ‘

meetings. The chairperson should ensure that information about the Yes No comments
meeting being convened and its agenda are communicated to all ‘ '
members of the body. The chairperson of a collegial body should
ensure appropriate conducting of the meetings of the collegial body.
The chairperson should ensure order and working atmosphere during
the meeting.

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the company's collegial bodies
should be carried out according to the schedule approved in advance
at certain intervals of time. Each company is free to decide how often to
convene meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recommended that .
these meetings should be convened at such intervals, which would Yes The board meetings are hgid at least once
guarantee an interrupted resolution of the essential corporate in a quarter or more often, if necessary.
governance issues. Meetings of the company's supervisory board
should be convened at least once in a quarter, and the company's board
should meet at least once a month.
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5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified about the meeting |

being convened in advance in arder to allow sufficient time for proper
preparation for the issues on the agenda of the meeting and to ensure
fruitful discussion and adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongside with
the notice about the meeting being convened, all the documents
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be submitted
to the members of the collegial body. The agenda of the meeting should
not be changed or supplemented during the meeting, unless all
members of the collegial body are present or certain issues of great
importance to the company require immediate resolution.

Yes

No comments.

5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the company's collegial bodies
and ensure effective decision-making process, chairpersons of the
company's collegial bodies of supervision and management should
closely co-operate by co-coordinating dates of the meetings, their
agendas and resclving other issues of corporate governance. Members
of the company's board should be free to attend meetings of the
company’s supervisory board, especially where issues concerning
removal of the board members, their liability or remuneration are
discussed.

6.1. It is recommended that the company's capital should consist on_ly
of the shares that grant the same rights to voting, ownership, dividend
and other rights to all their holders.

information concerning the rights attached to the shares of the new
issue or those issued earlier in advance, i.e. before they purchase
shares.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the company and its
shareholders, such as fransfer, investment, and pledge of the
company's assets or any other type of encumbrance should be subject
to approval of the general shareholders' meeting. All shareholders
should be furnished with equal opportunity to familiarize with and
participate in the decision-making process when significant corporate
issues, including approval of transactions referred to above, are
discussed.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a general shareholders’
meeting should ensure equal opportunities for the shareholders to
effectively participate at the meetings and should not prejudice the
rights and interests of the shareholders. The venue, date, and time of
the shareholders’ meeting should not hinder wide attendance of the
shareholders. Prior to the shareholders' meeting, the company's
supervisory and management bodies should enable the shareholders
to lodge questions on issues on the agenda of the general shareholders’
meeting and receive answers to them.

6.2. It is recommended that investors should have access to the |

Not

Not applicable, since only the board has
applicable; been set up.

Principle VI: The equitable_t;eatment of shareholders and shareholder ﬁghts

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders, including minority and
foreign shareholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the shareholders.

The Company's authorised share capital
consists of ordinary registered shares that

| grant the same rights to all their holders.

The Company's authorised share capital |
consists of ordinary registered shares that

grant the same rights to all their holders.

The Company is in compliance with the Law

on Companies
Association.

and

its

Articles

of

No comments.

6.5. It is recommended that documents on the course of the general
shareholders’ meeting, including draft resolutions of the meeting,
| should be placed on the publicly accessible website of the company in
advance. It is recommended that the minutes of the general
shareholders’ meeting after signing them and/or adopted resolutions
should be also placed on the publicly accessible website of the
company. Seeking to ensure the right of foreigners to familiarize with
the information, whenever feasible, documents referred to in this
recommendation should be published in English and/or other foreign
languages. Documents referred to in this recommendation may be
published on the publicly accessible website of the company to the
| extent that publishing of these documents is not detrimental to the
| company or the company’'s commercial secrets are not revealed.

Yes

The Company is in compliance with the Law

on Companies
Assaociation.

| 6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the opportunity to vote in
i the general shareholders' meeting in person and in absentia.

Shareholders should not be prevented from voting in writing in advance
| by completing the general voting ballot.

Yes

No comments.

and
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6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholders opportunities to
participate effectively at shareholders’ meetings, the companies are

recommended to expand use of modern technologies in voting The Company has no technical possibilities
processes by allowing the shareholders to vote in general meetings via to use modern technologies in voting
terminal equipment of telecommunications. In such cases security of process during the general meetings of
telecommunication equipment, text protection and a possibility to No shareholders, and the shareholders have
identify the signature of the voting person should be guaranteed. never requested so far to use modern
Moreover, companies could furnish its shareholders, especially technologies in voting process during the
foreigners, with the opportunity to watch shareholder meetings by general meetings of shareholders.

means of modern technologies.

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corporate bodies to avoid conflicts of interest
and assure transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest regarding members of the
corporate bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company's supervisory and management body |
should avoid a situation, in which his/her personal interests are in conflict
ar may be in conflict with the company's interests. In case such a situation
did occur, a member of the company's supervisory and management body Yes
should, within reasonable time, inform other members of the same collegial [
body or the company's body that has elected him/her, or to the company's
shareholders about a situation of a conflict of interest, indicate the nature of
the conflict and value, where possible.

| corporate body authorized by the meeting.

7.2. Any member of the company'’s supervisory and management body may
not mix the company's assets, the use of which has not been mutually
agreed upon, with his/her personal assets or use them or the information
which he/she learns by virtue of his/her position as a member of a corporate Yes
body for his/her personal benefit or for the benefit of any third person
without a prior agreement of the general shareholders’ meeting or any other |

|

No comments.

7.3. Any member of the company's supervisory and management body may
conclude a transaction with the company, a member of a corporate body of

which hefshe is. Such a transaction (except insignificant ones due to their

low value or concluded when carrying out routine operations in the
company under usual conditions) must be immediately reported in writing Yes
or orally, by recording this in the minutes of the meeting, to other members

of the same corporate body or to the corporate body that has elected

him/her or to the company's shareholders. Transactions specified in this ‘
recommendation are also subject to recommendation 4.5.

7.4. Any member of the company's supervisory and management body
should abstain from voting when decisions concerning transactions or other v N
issues of personal or business interest are voted on. ihoves o comments.

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration established in the
company should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration of directors, in addition

| it should ensure publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneration policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement of the company's

remuneration policy (hereinafter the remuneration statement). This . )
statement should be part of the company's annual accounts. Remuneration N The Company's remuneration
statement should also be posted on the company's website. policy is approved by the board.

8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus on directors’
remuneration policy for the following year and, if appropriate, the ) .
subsequent years. The statement should contain a summary of the The remuneration statement is
implementation of the remuneration policy in the previous financial year. No neither prepared nor made public in
Special attention should be given to any significant changes in company's a form as set forth herein.

remuneration policy as compared to the previous financial year.
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information:

1) Explanation of the relative importance of the variable and non-variable
components of directors’ remuneration;

2) Sufficient information on perfermance criteria that entitles directors to
share options, shares or variable components of remuneration;

3) Sufficient information on the linkage between the remuneration and
performance;

4) The main parameters and rationale for any annual bonus scheme and
any other non-cash benefits;

5) A description of the main characteristics of supplementary pension or
early retirement schemes for directors,

No

The remuneration statement is
neither prepared nor made public in
a form as set forth herein.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summarize and explain
company's policy regarding the terms of the contracts executed with
executive directors and members of the management bodies. It should
include, inter alia, information on the duration of contracts with executive
directors and members of the management bodies, the applicable notice
pericds and details of provisions for termination payments linked to early
termination under contracts for executive directors and members of the
_management bodies.

No

The remuneration statement is
neither prepared nar made public in
a form as set forth herein.

8.5. The information on preparatory and_dec'is'i'on-making processes, during |

which a policy of remuneration of directors is being established, should also
be disclosed. Information should include data, if applicable, on authorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, names and surnames of
external consultants whose services have been used in determination of
the remuneration policy as well as the role of sharehoiders’ annual general
meeting.

responsible for setting directors’ remunerations, the remuneration policy or
any other significant change in remuneration policy should be included into
the agenda of the shareholders' annual general meeting. Remuneration
statement should be put for voting in shareholders' annual general meeting.
The vote may be either mandatory or advisory.

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organization of the relevant bodies |

No

No

Information is not disclosed.

The remuneration statement is
neither prepared nor made public in
a form as set forth herein.

8.7. Remuneration statement should also contain detailed information on

the entire amount of remuneration, inclusive of other benefits, that was paid

to individual directors over the relevant financial year. This document

should list at least the information set out in items 8.7.1 to 8.7.4 for each

person who has served as a director of the company at any time during the

relevant financial year.

8.7.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments-related information

should be disclosed:

1) The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the director for services
‘ performed during the relevant financial year, inclusive of, where
‘ relevant, attendance fees fixed by the annual general shareholders

meeting;

2) The remuneration and advantages received from any undertaking
‘ belonging to the same group;

3) The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or bonus
payments and the reasons why such bonus payments and/or profit
sharing were granted;

If permissible by the law, any significant additional remuneration paid to

directors for special services outside the scope of the usual functions of

a director;

| 5) Compensation receivable or paid to each former executive director or
member of the management body as a result of his resignation from the
office during the previous financial year;

6) Total estimated value of non-cash benefits considered as remuneration,
other than the items covered in the above points.

8.7.2. As regards shares and/cr rights to acquire share options and/or all

other share-incentive schemes, the following information should be

disclosed:

1) The number of share options offered or shares granted by the company
during the relevant financial year and their conditions of application;

= =
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The remuneration statement is
neither prepared nor made public in
a form as set forth herein.
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2) The number of shares options exercised during the relevant financial
year and, for each of them, the number of shares involved and the
exercise price or the value of the interest in the share incentive scheme
at the end of the financial year;

3) The number of share options unexercised at the end of the financial

year; their exercise price, the exercise date and the main conditions for |

the exercise of the rights;

4) All changes in the terms and conditions of existing share options
occurring during the financial year.

8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-related information

should be disclosed:

1) When the pension scheme is a defined-benefit scheme, changes in the
directors' accrued benefits under that scheme during the relevant
financial year;

2) When the pension scheme is defined-contribution scheme, detailed
information on contributions paid or payable by the company in respect
of that director during the relevant financial year.

8.7.4. The statement should also state amounts that the company or any

subsidiary company or entity included in the consolidated annual financial

statements of the company has paid to each person who has served as a

director in the company at any time during the relevant financial year in the

form of loans, advance payments or guarantees, including the amount
outstanding and the interest rate.

8.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors in shares, share |

options or any other right to purchase shares or be remunerated on the
basis of share price movements should be subject to the prior approval of
shareholders' annual general meeting by way of a resolution prior to their
adoption. The approval of scheme should be related with the scheme itself
and not to the grant of such share-based benefits under that scheme to
individual directors. All significant changes in scheme provisions should
also be subject to shareholders' approval prior to their adoption; the
approval decision should be made in sharehclders’ annual general meeting.
In such case shareholders should be notified on all terms of suggested
changes and get an explanation on the impact of the suggested changes.

Not
applicable

8.9. The following issues should be subject to approval by the shareholders’ |

annual general meeting:

1)} Grant of share-based schemes, including share options, to directors;

2) Determination of maximum number of shares and main conditions of
share granting;

3) The term within which options can be exercised;

4) The conditions for any subsequent change in the exercise of the options,
if permissible by law;

5) Allother long-term incentive schemes for which directors are eligible and
which are not available to other employees of the company under similar
terms. Annual general meeting should also set the deadline within which
the body responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this article to individual directors.

Not
applicable

8.10. Should national law or company’s Articles of Association allow, any
discounted option arrangement under which any rights are granted to
subscribe to shares at a price lower than the market value of the share
prevailing on the day of the price determination, or the average of the
market values over a number of days preceding the date when the exercise
price is determined, should also be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

Not
applicable

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should not be applicable to schemes

allowing for participation under similar conditions to company's employees
or employees of any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible to
par‘tlc:lpate in the scheme and which has been approved in the

shareholders' annual general meeting.

101

Not
applicable

The Company neither has nor
applies any share-based schemes
anticipating remuneration of
directors in shares, share options,
etc.
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8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting that is intended to consider
decision stipulated in Article 8.8, the shareholders must be provided an
opportunity to familiarize with draft resolution and project-related notice (the
documents should be posted on the company's website). The notice should
contain the full text of the share-based remuneration schemes or a
descriptian of their key terms, as well as full names of the participants in the
schemes. Notice should also specify the relationship of the schemes and
the overall remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resolution must have
a clear reference to the scheme itself or to the summary of its key terms.
Shareholders must also be presented with information on how the company
intends to provide for the shares required to meet its obligations under
incentive schemes. It should be clearly stated whether the company intends
to buy shares in the market, hold the shares in reserve or issue new ones.
There should also be a summary on scheme-related expenses the
company will suffer due to the anticipated application of the scheme. All
information given in this article must be posted on the company's website.

Not
applicable

PFincipIe IX: The role of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders as established by law and encourage
active co-operation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value, jobs and financial
sustainability. For the purposes of this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includes investors, employees, creditors,
suppliers, clients, local community and other persons having certain interest in the company concerned.

9.1. The corporate governance framework should assure that the rights of
stakeholders that are protected by law are respected.

9.2. The corporate governance framework should create conditions for the
stakeholders to participate in corporate governance in the manner
prescribed by law. Examples of mechanisms of stakeholder participation in
corporate governance include: employee participation in adoption of certain
key decisions for the company; consulting the employees on corporate
governance and other important issues;, employee participation in the
company's share capital; creditor involvement in governance in the context
of the company's insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporate governance process,
they should have access to relevant information.

Yes

The Company has a collective
employment contract in place. The
chairman of the workers Trade
union is invited to join monthly
production meetings and other
major management discussions of
the Company.

“Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is made on all material
information regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of the company.
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1) The financial and operating results of the company;

2) Company objectives;

3) Persons holding by the right of ownership or in control of a block of shares
in the company;

4) Members of the company's supervisory and management bodies, chief
executive officer of the company and their remuneration;

5) Material foreseeable risk factars;

6) Transactions between the company and connected persons, as well as
transactions concluded outside the course of the company's regular
operations;

7) Material issues regarding employees and other stakeholders;

8) Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommendation, while the

companies are encouraged not to limit themselves to disclosure of the

information specified in this list.

10.2. It is recommended that consolidated results of the whole group to which

the company belongs should be disclosed when information specified in item

1 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the professional background,

qualifications of the members of supervisory and management bodies, chief

executive officer of the company should be disclosed as well as potential
conflicts of interest that may have an effect on their decisions when
information specified in item 4 of Recommendation 10.1 about the members
of the company's supervisory and management bodies is under disclosure. It
is also recommended that information about the amount of remuneration
received from the company and other income should be disclosed with regard
to members of the company’s supervisory and management bodies and chief

executive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4. It is recommended that information about the links between the

company and its stakeholders, including employees, creditors, suppliers,

local community, as well as the company’s policy with regard to human
resources, employee participation schemes in the company's share capital,
etc. should be disclosed when information specified in item 7 of

'Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a Wéy that neither shareholders |

nor investors are discriminated with regard to the manner or scope of access
to information. Information should be disclosed to all simultaneously. It is
recommended that notices about material events should be announced
before or after a trading session on the Vilnius Stock Exchange, so that all
the company's shareholders and investors should have equal access to the
information and make informed investing decisions.

10.6. Channels for disseminating information should pravide for fair, timely
and cost-efficient access to relevant information by users. It is recommended
that information technologies should be employed for wider dissemination of
information, for instance, by placing the information on the company's
website. It is recommended that information should be published and placed
on the company’s website not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, and,
whenever possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

| 10.7. It is recommended that the company's annual reports and other

periodical accounts prepared by the company should be placed on the

information about material events and changes in the price of the company's
shares on the Stock Exchange on the company's website too.
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All information, except for certain
items (see the note below), is
disclosed in the Company's annual
prospectus-reports, and posted on
the websites of the Company and
the Vilnius Stock Exchange.

| company's website. It is recommended that the company should announce |

Note:
Yes The following information
mentioned in paragraph 4 of
recommendation item 101 s
disclosed: members of the
| Company's supervisory and
| management bodies, chief
| executive officer of the Company
| (remuneration is not disclosed).
Information mentioned in
recommendation item 10.3 and
10.4 are not disclosed.
|
|
‘ Information is posted an the
Yes websites of the Vilnius Stock
} Exchange and the Company.
\
‘ Information is posted on the
Yes websites of the Vilnius Stock
Exchange and the Company.
|
This information is available on the
Yes | websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company.
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[ Principle XI: The selection of the company’s auditor

| The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of auditor's conclusion

| and opinion.

| 11.1. An annual audit of the company's financial statements and report |

| should be conducted by an independent firm of auditors in order to
i provide an external and objective opinion on the company's financial
statements.

[ 11.2. It is recommended that the company's supervisory board and,
where it is not set up, the company’s board should propose a candidate
firm of auditors to the general shareholders' meeting.

11.3. It is recommended that the company should disclose to its |

shareholders the level of fees paid to the firm of auditors for non-audit
services rendered to the company. This information should be also known
to the company's supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the

| company's board upon their consideration which firm of auditors to
propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

104

Yes

Yes

Yes

| The Company is in compliance with this
: recommendation, where the Company's

board proposes a candidate firm of
auditors to the general meeting of
shareholders.




